
  

 

DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE 

________________________________________________ 
 

Wednesday, 12 March 2014 at 7.00 p.m. 
 

Council Chamber, 1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove 
Crescent, London, E14 2BG 

 
The meeting is open to the public to attend.  

 

Members: 
Chair: Councillor Helal Abbas 
Vice Chair : Councillor Anwar Khan 
Councillor Judith Gardiner, Councillor Kosru Uddin, Councillor Tim Archer, Councillor 
Gulam Robbani and Councillor Harun Miah 
 
Deputies:  
Councillor Rajib Ahmed, Councillor Denise Jones, Councillor Carli Harper-Penman, 
Councillor Zara Davis, Councillor Peter Golds, Councillor Md. Maium Miah and 
Councillor Fozol Miah 
 
The quorum for this body is 3 Members 

 

Public Information. 
The deadline for registering to speak is 4pm Monday, 10 March 2014 
Please contact the Officer below to register. The speaking procedures are attached. 
 
The deadline for submitting material for the update report is Noon Tuesday, 11 March 
2014 

 

Contact for further enquiries:  
Zoe Folley, Democratic Services,  
1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, E14 2BG 
Tel: 020 7364 4877 
E-mail: zoe.folley@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
Web:http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee 
 

Scan this code for 
electronic agenda  

 

 



 
 
 
 

 
Public Information 

Attendance at meetings. 
The public are welcome to attend meetings of the Committee. However seating is limited 
and offered on a first come first served basis. 
 
Audio/Visual recording of meetings.  
No photography or recording without advanced permission. 

 
Mobile telephones 
Please switch your mobile telephone on to silent mode whilst in the meeting.  

 
Access information for the Town Hall, Mulberry Place.      

 
Bus: Routes: 15, 277, 108, D6, D7, D8 all stop 
near the Town Hall.  
Docklands Light Railway: Nearest stations are 
East India: Head across the bridge and then 
through the complex to the Town Hall, Mulberry 
Place  
Blackwall station: Across the bus station then turn 
right to the back of the Town Hall complex, 
through the gates and archway to the Town Hall.  
Tube: The closest tube stations are Canning 
Town and Canary Wharf . 
Car Parking: There is limited visitor pay and 

display parking at the Town Hall (free from 6pm) 

If you are viewing this on line:(http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/content_pages/contact_us.aspx)  

Meeting access/special requirements.  
The Town Hall is accessible to people with special needs. There are accessible toilets, lifts 
to venues. Disabled parking bays and an induction loop system for people with hearing 
difficulties are available.  Documents can be made available in large print, Braille or audio 
version. For further information, contact the Officers shown on the front of the agenda.  

     
Fire alarm 
If the fire alarm sounds please leave the building immediately by the nearest available fire 
exit without deviating to collect belongings. Fire wardens will direct you to the exits and to 
the fire assembly point. If you are unable to use the stairs, a member of staff will direct you 
to a safe area. The meeting will reconvene if it is safe to do so, otherwise it will stand 
adjourned. 

Electronic agendas reports and minutes. 
Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be 
found on our website from day of publication.   
 
To access this, click www.towerhamlets.gov.uk, ‘Council and Democracy’ 
(left hand column of page), ‘Council Minutes Agendas and Reports’ then 
choose committee and then relevant meeting date.  
 

Agendas are available at the Town Hall, Libraries, Idea Centres and One 
Stop Shops and on the Mod.Gov, Apple and Android apps.   

 
QR code for 
smart phone 
users 

 



 
 
 
 

 

 
 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 

1. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS  (Pages 1 
- 4) 

 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Monitoring Officer. 
  

 

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING(S)  (Pages 5 - 12) 
 
 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Development Committee 

held on 12th February 2014.  
 

3. RECOMMENDATIONS   
 
 To RESOLVE that: 

 

1) in the event of changes being made to recommendations by the Committee, the 
task of formalising the wording of those changes is delegated to the Corporate 
Director Development and Renewal along the broad lines indicated at the 
meeting; and 

 
2) in the event of any changes being needed to the wording of the Committee’s 

decision (such as to delete, vary or add conditions/informatives/planning 
obligations or reasons for approval/refusal) prior to the decision being issued, 
the Corporate Director Development and Renewal is delegated authority to do 
so, provided always that the Corporate Director does not exceed the 
substantive nature of the Committee’s decision. 

 
 

4. PROCEDURE FOR HEARING OBJECTIONS AND MEETING GUIDANCE  
(Pages 13 - 14) 

 
 To note the procedure for hearing objections at meetings of the Development Committee 

and meeting guidance. 
 
 

 
 
 

PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

5. DEFERRED ITEMS  
 

  

  
Nil Items.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 
 
 
 

6. PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR DECISION  
 

15 - 16  

6 .1 Units 24 - 32 (even) Mastmaker Road, London, E14 
9UB (PA/13/02773)   

 

17 - 72 Millwall 

 Proposal: Application to vary Condition 6 (hours of 
operation) attached to planning permission dated 
15/10/2013 ref: PA/13/01647, which varied conditions 5 
and 6 of the planning permission dated 10/07/2013 ref: 
PA/13/00116 which allowed a change of use of the existing 
light industrial units to a secondary school (Use Class D1) 
offering a range of vocational subjects for 14-19 year olds.  
 
Recommendation: To GRANT planning permission subject 
to conditions and informatives.  
 

  

6 .2 93 New Road, London, E1 1HH (PA/13/02318)   
 

73 - 86 Whitechapel 

 Proposal: Proposed change of use from a retail shop A1 
into a restaurant A3. 
 
Recommendation: To GRANT planning permission subject 
to conditions. 
 

  

7. OTHER PLANNING MATTERS  
 

  

  
Nil Items. 
 

  

 
Next Meeting of the Development Committee 
Wednesday, 9 April 2014 at 7.00 p.m. in the Council Chamber, 1st Floor, Town Hall, 
Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, E14 2BG 

 
 



DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE MONITORING OFFICER 
 

This note is for guidance only.  For further details please consult the Members’ Code of Conduct 
at Part 5.1 of the Council’s Constitution.    
 
Please note that the question of whether a Member has an interest in any matter, and whether or 
not that interest is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, is for that Member to decide.  Advice is 
available from officers as listed below but they cannot make the decision for the Member.  If in 
doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to attending a meeting.   
 
Interests and Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) 
 
You have an interest in any business of the authority where that business relates to or is likely to 
affect any of the persons, bodies or matters listed in section 4.1 (a) of the Code of Conduct; and 
might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or financial position of yourself, a 
member of your family or a person with whom you have a close association, to a greater extent 
than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward affected. 
 
You must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of any such interest, for inclusion in the Register 
of Members’ Interests which is available for public inspection and on the Council’s Website. 
 
Once you have recorded an interest in the Register, you are not then required to declare that 
interest at each meeting where the business is discussed, unless the interest is a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI). 
 
A DPI is defined in Regulations as a pecuniary interest of any of the descriptions listed at 
Appendix A overleaf.  Please note that a Member’s DPIs include his/her own relevant interests 
and also those of his/her spouse or civil partner; or a person with whom the Member is living as 
husband and wife; or a person with whom the Member is living as if they were civil partners; if the 
Member is aware that that other person has the interest.    
 
Effect of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest on participation at meetings 
 
Where you have a DPI in any business of the Council you must, unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the authority's Monitoring Officer following consideration by the Dispensations 
Sub-Committee of the Standards Advisory Committee:- 

- not seek to improperly influence a decision about that business; and 
- not exercise executive functions in relation to that business. 

 
If you are present at a meeting where that business is discussed, you must:- 

- Disclose to the meeting  the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting 
or when the interest becomes apparent, if later; and  

- Leave the room (including any public viewing area) for the duration of consideration and 
decision on the item and not seek to influence the debate or decision  

 
When declaring a DPI, Members should specify the nature of the interest and the agenda item to 
which the interest relates.  This procedure is designed to assist the public’s understanding of the 
meeting and to enable a full record to be made in the minutes of the meeting.   
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



Where you have a DPI in any business of the authority which is not included in the Member’s 
register of interests and you attend a meeting of the authority at which the business is 
considered, in addition to disclosing the interest to that meeting, you must also within 28 days 
notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest for inclusion in the Register.  
 
Further advice 
 
For further advice please contact:- 

Meic Sullivan-Gould, Monitoring Officer, Telephone Number: 020 7364 4801 
 

 

Page 2



APPENDIX A:  Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
 
(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule) 
 

Subject Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on 
for profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other 
than from the relevant authority) made or provided within the 
relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by the 
Member in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the 
election expenses of the Member. 

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a 
body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and 
the relevant authority— 

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works 
are to be executed; and 

(b) which has not been fully discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 
relevant authority. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)— 

(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and 

(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest. 
 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where— 

(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and 

(b) either— 
 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the 
total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth 
of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 12/02/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 7.00 P.M. ON WEDNESDAY, 12 FEBRUARY 2014 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 1ST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE 
CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Helal Abbas (Chair)  
Councillor Anwar Khan (Vice-Chair)  
Councillor Judith Gardiner  
Councillor Tim Archer  
Councillor Gulam Robbani (Executive Advisor to the Cabinet and 

Mayor on Adult Social Care) 
Councillor Harun Miah (Deputy Leader of the Respect Group) 
Councillor Rajib Ahmed (Substitute for 
Councillor Kosru Uddin) 

 

 
Other Councillors Present: 
 
Councillor Joshua Peck  

 
Apologies: 
 
Councillor Kosru Uddin 
 

Officers Present: 
 

Paul Buckenham – (Development Control Manager, Development 
and Renewal) 

Piotr Lanoszka – (Planning Officer, Development and Renewal) 
Elaine Bell – (Legal Advisor, Directorate, Law, Probity and 

Governance) 
Zoe Folley – (Committee Officer, Directorate Law, Probity and 

Governance) 
 
 
The Chair introduced Paul Buckenham to the meeting, the new Development 
Manager. The Committee looked forward to working with Mr Buckenham in 
the future.  
 
The Chair adjourned the meeting at 7:15pm until 7:25pm to allow Committee 
Members to arrive at the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 12/02/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

1. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 
No declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests were made.  
 
Councillors Helal Abbas and Harun Miah declared an interest in agenda items  
6.1 (375 Cable Street, London, E1 0AH (PA/13/02251)) and 6.2 (Coborn 
Arms, 6-10 Coborn Road, London, E3 2DA (PA/13/02287)).This was on the 
basis that the Councillors had received correspondence from interested 
parties. 
 

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING(S)  
 
The Committee RESOLVED 
 
That the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 11th December 
2013 be agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.  
 

3. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
The Committee RESOLVED that: 
 

1) In the event of changes being made to recommendations by the 
Committee, the task of formalising the wording of those changes is 
delegated to the Corporate Director, Development and Renewal along 
the broad lines indicated at the meeting; and  

 
2) In the event of any changes being needed to the wording of the 

Committee’s decision (such as to delete, vary or add 
conditions/informatives/planning obligations or reasons for 
approval/refusal) prior to the decision being issued, the Corporate 
Director, Development and Renewal is delegated authority to do so, 
provided always that the Corporate Director does not exceed the 
substantive nature of the Committee’s decision 

 
4. PROCEDURE FOR HEARING OBJECTIONS AND MEETING GUIDANCE  

 
The Committee noted the procedure for hearing objections, together with 
details of persons who had registered to speak at the meeting. 
 

5. DEFERRED ITEMS  
 
Nil Items.  
 

6. PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR DECISION  
 
 

6.1 375 Cable Street, London, E1 0AH (PA/13/02251)  
 
Paul Buckenham (Development Manager, Development and Renewal) 
introduced the item regarding 375 Cable Street, London for a variation of 
condition 3 of planning permission granted by the Secretary of State for 

Page 6



DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 12/02/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

Communities and Local Government on 30th March 2011, to allow opening 
hours from 9am - 10pm Sunday to Thursday and 9am - 11pm Friday and 
Saturday. The approved hours were: 9am - 9pm Sunday to Thursday and 
9am and 10pm Friday and Saturday.  
 
Emma Davidson spoke in objection to the proposal as a local resident who 
lived opposite the premises. She expressed concern about the adverse 
impact on the residents quality of life generally from the takeaway, particularly 
from the litter, noise and anti-social behaviour (ASB).  
 
She considered that the outdoor wheelie bin, required under the planning 
condition, hadn’t been there for 18 months and there were no waste bins 
outside the premises. She explained the concerns with youths congregating 
outside the shop causing ASB. The residents, particularly the elderly, were 
very frightened of this.   
 
If granted, the residents quality of living would deteriorate even further 
(especially the elderly and shift workers trying to sleep at night).She did not 
consider that the extension was needed as there were many other late night 
takeaways nearby. No Officer from the relevant Authorities supported the 
extension. She requested that the proposal be refused. 
 
The Committee sought clarity on the problems with rubbish. Ms Davidson 
stated that there was rubbish on the streets. She stated that she had 
contacted the Council many times about the lack of rubbish bins outside the 
shop and the collection arrangements.  
 
Members also asked about the availability of evidence to show that the 
takeaway was the cause of the problems. Ms Davidson commented on the 
likelihood of this, given the proximity of the premises to the litter and ASB.  
There were chicken bones in her garden and people congregating outside her 
door. She expressed concern about the management’s attitude to addressing 
the concerns as shown by the lack of an outdoor wheelie bin. She considered 
that the bin could go some way to addressing the problems. However, it would 
not deal with the ASB issues.  
 
Charles Copeland spoke in objection as a local resident. He also expressed 
concerns about the harmful impact on the neighbours quality of life from the 
shop generally. He considered that all key agencies agreed that the premises 
trading hours should remain as present to safeguard residential amenity. He 
quoted from letters from the Planning Inspectorate and various Council 
Planning Officers saying this.  
 
Rakesh Kataria spoke in favour of the application on behalf of the applicant. 
He considered that was no evidence to demonstrate that the activities from 
the takeaway had caused any harm in terms of noise, ASB, youths loitering 
around and drug dealing. Anyway, the management had a zero tolerance 
approach to such behaviour and would work with the Council to address any 
issues. Council Officers had visited the shop a number of times to leave bins 
outside the premises and had extended the lease to 11pm. The applicant 
cleaned the outside area regularly. There were a number of similar premises 

Page 7



DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 12/02/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

in residential areas with late night opening hours. So the proposed hours fell 
within the accepted hours and should not attract customers to the area after 
they had closed.  
 
Mr Kataria stressed the need for the extension to satisfy the wishes of his 
customers, including families. They have regularly asked that the shop open 
later, save them walking further late at night. There was a petition with over 
190 positive signatures.  
 
Members sought clarity on the likelihood that young families would buy food 
from the shop late at night. Mr Kataria considered that, whilst there were no 
statistics supporting this, he was basing his comments on the feedback.  The 
applicant did provide bins outside the premises. There was signage asking 
customer to respect residents amenity.  
 
Officers confirmed that the reference to the increase in the hours of the lease 
to 11pm was quite separate from the planning permission. 
 
Piotr Lanoszka, (Planning Officer, Development and Renewal) presented the 
report. Mr Lanoszka explained the location of the takeaway in Cable Street 
and that the surrounding area was mainly residential. He explained the close 
proximity of the shop to residential units, the location of the nearby Town 
Centre and the hot food takeaways. The site had good transport links. He 
explained the scope and outcome of the local consultation that had resulted in 
69 individual objections, 31 supporting representations and a petition in 
support. He explained the extensive planning history to the application 
including the outcome of the successful appeal. At which, the Inspectorate 
concluded that the application should only be granted with the current terminal 
hours to protect residential amenity. 
 
In summary, Officers considered that the proposal, if granted, would have a 
harmful impact on residential amenity. Therefore, in accordance with policy, 
Officers were recommending that the extension in hours be refused.  
 
Members asked questions about the number of formal complaints about the 
establishment. Officers confirmed that the objections were mainly from 
residents and anecdotic in nature. Environmental Health had not made any 
objections. The Police had not made any comments.  
 
Members asked questions about the measures to enforce the closing hours, if 
approved, given the previous breaches.  It was felt that any further incidences 
could mean the shop opening even later, under this new permission. Officers 
gave assurances that any breaches of Planning control would be investigated 
by the Council’s Enforcement team in the usual way and that the Committee 
must consider the merits of this application. 
 
The Committee also discussed the merits of granting the permission on a trial 
basis. 
 
On a vote of 2 in favour of the Officer recommendation, 4 against and 1 
abstention, the Committee RESOLVED: 

Page 8



DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 12/02/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

 
That the Officer recommendation to refuse the variation of condition 3 of 
planning permission (PA/13/02251) at 375 Cable Street, London, E1 0AH 
granted by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government on 
30th March 2011, reference APP/E5900/A/10/2141935/NWF, LBTH reference 
PA/07/03290 be NOT ACCEPTED to allow opening hours from 9am - 10pm 
Sunday to Thursday and 9am - 11pm Fridays and Saturdays.  
 
The Committee were minded to approve the application due to the following 
reasons: 
 

• The lack of formal evidence that the premises was responsible for anti-
social behaviour and that the extended hours would cause harm to the 
amenity of local residents. 

• The number of similar premises that operated with late night hours.  

• To consider the option of a temporary consent with alternative hours     
(for example a closing time of 10:30pm, Fridays and Saturdays).  

• That, in view of the current economic climate, it was important to 
support a local family run business.  

In accordance with Development Procedural Rules, the application was 
DEFERRED to enable Officers to prepare a supplementary report to a future 
meeting of the Committee setting out proposed detailed reasons for approval 
and conditions on the application. 
 
(The Members that voted on this item were Councillors Helal Abbas, Anwar 
Khan, Judith Gardiner, Tim Archer, Rajib Ahmed, Gulam Robbani and Harun 
Miah) 
 

6.2 Coborn Arms, 6-10 Coborn Road, London, E3 2DA (PA/13/02287)  
 
Update report tabled.  
 
Paul Buckenham (Development Manager, Development and Renewal) 
introduced the item regarding Coborn Arms, 6-10 Coborn Road, London, E3 
2DA for an extension to existing kitchen at rear with new extract system, 
partial demolition of existing side extension and erection of new extension to 
form new orangery dining area and herb garden, a side/rear extension to 
existing bar and associated works.  
 
Gamon McLellan spoke in opposition to the application as a nearby resident. 
He expressed concern about the impact on residents from the proposal in 
terms of increased noise and disturbance (i.e. from the increased capacity, 
outdoor space and the opening hours). There would be more use of the 
heated forecourt late at night and noise from deliveries disturbing residents.  
 
The premises had become bigger and noisier over recent years and there had 
been an increase in residential properties nearby, since the public house had 
opened.  Given the changing nature of the area, the plans were inappropriate. 

Page 9



DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 12/02/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

He questioned whether the local community actual needed this project. If 
expanded, the public house would no longer be a local public house. 
 
Serena Jenks spoke in opposition as a local resident. She expressed concern 
about the impact on residents from the existing activities in terms of noise and 
disturbance.  Particularly from the opening hours and use of the heated 
forecourt. The plans would worsen this by increasing rowdiness, ASB and 
general comings and goings at anti social hours. Her bedroom was at the 
front of her property so at a very noise sensitive location. She considered that 
the premises should be updated but in a way that protected residents 
amenity.  She cited an example where she personally experienced ASB from 
a customer from the premises. 
 
Members noted the lack of complaints from the Police about the premises in 
the report. Ms Jenks, in response, confirmed her fears around noise and 
disturbance due to the nature of the proposal.  
 
Councillor Joshua Peck, as a ward Councillor spoke in opposition. He stated 
that he was speaking on behalf of many local residents. His main objection 
was to the perceived over intensification of the site. The public house already 
had a capacity of 200 that was very large for a residential area. If granted, 
there would almost be a doubling of useable floor space given the reduction in 
other internal areas. As a result, the actual capacity of customers drinking was 
more likely to rise to, in practice, 350 not 250 as stated in the report. At 
weekends, the numbers were more likely to reach 750 (taking into account the 
total turn over for the entire evening) with 500-600 people walking past 
peoples houses at night.  
 
In response to Members, he welcomed the engagement with the community 
over the design of the proposal and considered that the public house should 
be brought up to modern standards. However, stressed that the capacity 
should be kept to the existing capacity of 200 with possible an increase in the 
restaurant capacity. 
 
Note. The Applicant had been invited to address the Committee for 9 minutes, 
however had declined the offer.  
 
Piotr Lanoszka (Planning Officer, Development and Renewal) presented the 
detailed report. Mr Lanoszka explained the surrounding area that was mainly 
residential, including the location of the nearby heritage assets, town centre 
and notable commercial units. He explained the outcome of the local 
consultation with 44 individual objections and the representation in the update 
report. He explained the changes to the plans in response to the public 
consultation, the floor layouts and the access arrangements. All of the public 
areas would be fully enclosed with no public access to the external areas.  
 
It was considered that the proposal was acceptable on land use terms given it 
was unlikely to draw customers away from local trade and therefore harm 
trade. The Council’s Conservation Officer and Highway Officer had no 
objections. Environmental Health had no objections to the proposal.  
 

Page 10



DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 12/02/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

A key issue was the impact on residential amenity from the plans. The 
Committee were invited to balance this against the benefits of the scheme for 
the local economy.  
 
Officers confirmed the expected increase in floor space. It was considered 
unreasonable to claim that there would be a consummate increase in 
disturbance from this.  
 
In view of this, the controls available under the various regimes and the 
historic public house use, Officers considered that the impact on the 
neighbours would not be so significant to warrant a refusal.  
 
Members noted the concerns around noise from the outdoor area and asked 
about the discussions with the applicant to minimise any nuisance. In 
response, Officers explained the measures to minimise this. The applicant 
would be required to apply for planning permission to extend the outdoor area 
any further. Officers also explained the need for the smoking area to be at the 
front of the premises to minimise any rather than at the back. It was 
necessary to consider this application on the planning merits. Nevertheless, it 
was possible to apply further measures to minimise the impact on the 
neighbours through the Licensing regime (around noise nuisance, late night 
events etc).  
 
On a vote of 1 in favour of the Officer recommendation, 4 against and 2 
abstentions the Committee RESOLVED: 
 
That the Officer recommendation to grant planning permission (PA/13/02287) 
at Coborn Arms, 6-10 Coborn Road, London, E3 2DA be NOT ACCEPTED  
for: 
 

• the erection of single storey side extension to existing kitchen at rear 
with new extract system.  

• Partial demolition of existing side extension at rear and erection of new 
extension to form new orangery dining area and herb garden.  

• Erection of single storey side/rear extension to existing bar.  

• Installation of new air-conditioning units and condensers onto existing 
flat roof. 

The Committee were minded to refuse the scheme due to concerns over the 
impact on residents in terms of increased noise, disturbance and anti-social 
behaviour deriving from the increased capacity of the pubic house arising 
from the proposed extensions.  
 
In accordance with Development Procedural Rules, the application was 
DEFERRED to enable Officers to prepare a supplementary report to a future 
meeting of the Committee setting out proposed detailed reasons for refusal 
and the implications of the decision. 
 

Page 11



DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 12/02/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

8 

(The Members that voted on this item were Councillors Helal Abbas, Anwar 
Khan, Judith Gardiner, Tim Archer, Rajib Ahmed, Gulam Robbani and Harun 
Miah) 
 

7. OTHER PLANNING MATTERS  
 
Nil Items.  
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 8.45 p.m.  
 
 

Chair, Councillor Helal Abbas 
Development Committee 

 

Page 12



Guidance for Development Committee/Strategic Development Committee Meetings. 
 

Who can speak at Committee meetings?  
Members of the public and Councillors may request to speak on applications for decision 
(Part 6 of the agenda). All requests must be sent direct to the Committee Officer shown on 
the front of the agenda by the deadline – 4pm one clear working day before the meeting.  
Requests should be sent in writing (e-mail) or by telephone detailing the name and contact 
details of the speaker and whether they wish to speak in support or against. Requests 
cannot be accepted before agenda publication. Speaking is not normally allowed on 
deferred items or applications which are not for decision by the Committee.  
 
The following may register to speak per application in accordance with the above rules: 

Up to two objectors 
on a first come first 
served basis. 

For up to three minutes each.  

Committee/Non 
Committee Members. 

 For up to three minutes each - in support or against.  

Applicant/ 
supporters.  
 
This includes: 
an agent or 
spokesperson.  
 
Members of the 
public in support   

Shall be entitiled to an equal time to that given to any objector/s. 
For example: 

• Three minutes for one objector speaking.  

• Six minutes for two objectors speaking. 

• Additional three minutes for any Committee and non 
Committee Councillor speaking in objection.  
 

It shall be at the discretion of the applicant to allocate these 
supporting time slots.  

What if no objectors register to speak against an applicant for decision?  
The applicant or their supporter(s) will not be expected to address the Committee should 
no objectors register to speak and where Officers are recommending approval. However, 
where Officers are recommending refusal of the application and there are no objectors or 
members registered, the applicant or their supporter(s) may address the Committee for 3 
minutes. 
 
The Chair may vary the speaking rules and the order of speaking in the interest of natural 
justice or in exceptional circumstances.  
 
Committee Members may ask points of clarification of speakers following their speech.  
Apart from this, speakers will not normally participate any further. Speakers are asked to 
arrive at the start of the meeting in case the order of business is changed by the Chair. If 
speakers are not present by the time their application is heard, the Committee may 
consider the item in their absence.  
 
This guidance is a précis of the full speaking rules that can be found on the Committee and 
Member Services webpage: www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee under Council 
Constitution, Part.4.8, Development Committee Procedural Rules.  

 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



What can be circulated?  
Should you wish to submit a representation or petition, please contact the planning officer 
whose name appears on the front of the report in respect of the agenda item. Any 
representations or petitions should be submitted no later than noon the working day before 
the committee meeting for summary in the update report that is tabled at the committee 
meeting. No written material (including photos) may be circulated at the Committee meeting 
itself by members of the public including public speakers. 

 
How will the applications be considered?  
The Committee will normally consider the items in agenda order subject to the Chair’s 
discretion.  The procedure for considering applications for decision shall be as follows: 
Note: there is normally no further public speaking on deferred items or other planning 
matters 

(1) Officers will announce the item with a brief description.  
(2) Any objections that have registered to speak to address the Committee  
(3) The applicant and or any supporters that have registered to speak to address 

the Committee  
(4) Committee and non- Committee Member(s) that have registered to speak to 

address the Committee  
(5) The Committee may ask points of clarification of each speaker after their 

address. 
(6) Officers will present the report supported by a presentation.  
(7) The Committee will consider the item (questions and debate). 
(8) The Committee will reach a decision. 

 
Should the Committee be minded to make a decision contrary to the Officer 
recommendation and the Development Plan, the item will normally be deferred to a future 
meeting with a further Officer report detailing the implications for consideration. 

 
How can I find out about a decision?  
You can contact Democratic Services the day after the meeting to find out the decisions. 
The decisions will also be available on the Council’s website shortly after the meeting.  
 
For queries on reports please contact the Officer named on the front of the report. 

Deadlines. 
To view the schedule of deadlines for meetings (including those for 
agenda papers and speaking at meetings) visit the agenda management 
timetable, part of the Committees web pages.  
Visit www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee - search for relevant 
Committee, then ‘browse meetings and agendas’ then ‘agenda 
management timetable’. 

 
Scan this code to 
view the 
Committee 
webpages.  

The Rules of Procedures for the Committee are as follows: 

• Development Committee Procedural Rules - Part 4.8 of the 
Council’s Constitution (Rules of Procedure). 

• Terms of Reference for the Strategic Development Committee - 
Part 3.3.5 of the Council’s Constitution (Responsibility for 
Functions).  

• Terms of Reference for the Development Committee - Part 3.3.4 of 
the Council’s Constitution (Responsibility for Functions).  

 
Council’s 
Constitution  

 

Page 14



 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 (Section 97) 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN THE DRAFTING OF THE REPORTS UNDER ITEM 7 
 

Brief Description of background papers: Tick if copy supplied for register: Name and telephone no. of holder: 

Application, plans, adopted UDP,Interim 
Planning Guidance and London Plan 

ü  Eileen McGrath (020) 7364 5321 

 

Committee: 
Development 
 

Date: 
12th March 2014 

 

Classification:  
Unrestricted 
 

Agenda Item No: 
6 
 

Report of:  
CorporateDirector Development and Renewal 
 
Originating Officer:  
Owen Whalley 
 

Title: Planning Applications for Decision 
 
Ref No:See reports attached for each item 
 
Ward(s):See reports attached for each item 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 In this part of the agenda are reports on planning applications for determination by the 
Committee. Although the reports are ordered by application number, the Chair may reorder 
the agenda on the night. If you wish to be present for a particular application you need to be 
at the meeting from the beginning. 

1.2 The following information and advice applies to all those reports. 

2. FURTHER INFORMATION 

2.1 Members are informed that all letters of representation and petitions received in relation to 
the items on this part of the agenda are available for inspection at the meeting. 

2.2 Members are informed that any further letters of representation, petitionsor other matters 
received since the publication of this part of the agenda, concerning items on it, will be 
reported to the Committee in an Addendum Update Report. 

3. ADVICE OF HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES 

3.1 The relevant policy framework against which the Committee is required to consider 
planning applications comprises the Development Plan and other material policy 
documents. The Development Plan is: 

• the London Plan 2011 

• the Tower Hamlets Core Strategy Development Plan Document 2025 adopted September 
2010  

• the Managing Development Document adopted April 2013 
 
3.2 Other material policy documents include the Council's Community Plan, supplementary 

planning documents, government planning policy set out in the National Planning Policy 
Statement andplanning guidance notes and circulars. 

3.3 Decisions must be taken in accordance with section 70(2) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 and section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.  
Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 requires the Committee to have 
regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far as material to the application and 
any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004 requires the Committee to make its determination in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material planning considerations support a different decision 
being taken. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



3.4 Under Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, in 
considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects listed 
buildings or their settings, the local planning authority must have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of architectural or historic 
interest it possesses. 

3.5 Under Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, in 
considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a 
conservation area, the local planning authority must pay special attention to the desirability 
of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area. 

3.6 The Equality Act 2010 provides that in exercising its functions (which includes the functions 
exercised by the Council as Local Planning Authority), that the Council as a public authority 
shall amongst other duties have due regard to the need to- 

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 
prohibited under the Act; 

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

3.7 The protected characteristics set out in the Equality Act are: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.  
The Equality Act acknowledges that compliance with the duties set out may involve treating 
some persons more favourably than others, but that this does not permit conduct that would 
otherwise be prohibited under the Act. 

3.8 In accordance with Article 31 of the Development Management Procedure Order 2010, 
Members are invited to agree the recommendations set out in the reports, which have been 
made on the basis of the analysis of the scheme set out in each report. This analysis has 
been undertaken on the balance of the policies and any other material considerations set 
out in the individual reports. 

4. PUBLIC SPEAKING 

4.1 The Council’s constitution allows for public speaking on these items in accordance with the 
rules set out in the constitution and the Committee’s procedures. These are set out at 
Agenda Item 4. 

5. RECOMMENDATION 

5.1 The Committee to take any decisions recommended in the attached reports. 

Page 16



 1 

Committee: 
Development  

Date:  
12th   March  2014  

Classification:  
Unrestricted 

Agenda Item Number: 
 

 

Report of:  
Director of Development and 
Renewal 
 
Case Officer: 
Angelina Eke  

Title: Applications for Planning Permission  
 
Ref No:  PA/13/02773 (Full Planning Application) 
    
Ward: Mill wall (February 2002 onwards) 

 
 
1.  APPLICATION DETAILS 
 
   
 Location: Units 24 – 32 (even) Mastmaker Road, London, E14 

9UB  
 

 Existing Use: Educational Use (Use Class D1)  
 

 Proposal: Application to vary Condition 6 (hours of operation) 
attached to planning permission dated 15/10/2013 ref: 
PA/13/01647, which varied conditions 5 and 6 of the 
planning permission dated 10/07/2013 ref: 
PA/13/00116 which allowed a change of use of the 
existing light industrial units to a secondary school 
(Use Class D1) offering a range of vocational subjects 
for 14-19 year olds.  

 
The amendments seek to vary the arrival times for 
Teachers and Staff of the school and to extend the 
operation times for the social enterprise units as 
follows:   

  
Teachers & staff  

• Mondays to Saturdays - 6.30 - 23:00 hours 
 
      14 - 16 year old students 

• 09:30 - 15:00 (as approved under PA/13/01647) 

• 16 - 19 year old students - 10:00 - 15:30 (as 
approved under PA/13/01647) 

 
Nursery/Family Centre 

• Monday to Friday - 07:00 - 20:00 hours 

• Saturdays 08:00 - 18:00 hours 
 

Café/Restaurant use    

• Mondays to Fridays - 07:30 - 22:00  

• Saturdays - 10:00 – 22:00 hours 

• Sundays - 10:00 – 21:00 hours    
 

Gym/Sports Hall  

• Mondays to Fridays - 06:30 - 22:00  

• Saturdays and Sundays – 08:00 – 20:00 hours 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6.1



 2 

 
 Drawing and documents: 

 
Drawings: 
099 REV 0, 100 REV 0, 102 REV 0, 
103 REV 0, 110 REV 0, 111 REV 0, 
201 REV 0, 202 REV 0, 210 REV 0, 
211 REV 0, 2110 REV2, 2012 REVD 
and 7000 REV CP1.  
 
Documents: 

• Planning and Impact Statement, 
prepared by TP Bennett, dated 
July 2013.  

• Mast Maker Court – School 
Management Plan, prepared by 
City Gateway, Dated 8 October 
2013.   

• Transport Assessment, Document 
Reference: JNY7860-01A 
prepared by RPS, dated 16 
January 2013. 

• Framework School Travel Plan, 
Document Reference: JNY7860-
02A, prepared by RPS, dated 16 
January 2013. 

• CRQ Design and Access 
Statement REVA, dated 18 
January 2013, prepared by R H 
Partnership Architects. 

• Planning and Impact Statement, 
dated January 2013, prepared by 
T P Bennett.   

• Marketing Report, dated January 
2013, prepared by T P Bennett.  

• Transport Assessment, Ref: 
JNY7860-01A, prepared by RPS, 
dated 16 January 2013. 

• Environmental noise survey report, 
Ref: 12437-R01-C, prepared by 
Sandy Brown, dated 17 January 
2013. 

• Energy Strategy Report REV 1.0, 
prepared by Atkins, dated 18 
January 2013.  

• Flood Risk Assessment, Ref: 
131952 – R1 (0) – FRA, dated 
February 2013, prepared by Kier. 

• Contamination Study - Phase 1 
Desk Study, REF: 30458, dated 17 
January 2013, prepared by Gary 
Gabriel Associates.  

• Statement of Community 
Involvement, January 2013, 
prepared by TP Bennett.  

• Construction Management Plan 

Page 18



 3 

comprising  

• Kier Construction London Traffic 
Plan – 4337, 

• Kier Construction London City 
Gateway - TM Plan REVA, and; 

• Appendix D Traffic 
Management. 

• Flood Evacuation Plan, Version 
1.3, dated, 2 October 2013.  

• Email dated 4 September 2013 
from Kier Construction. 

• Email dated 19/02/2014 from 
Steve Moore of City Gateway 

 Applicant: City Gateway  
 

 Ownership: City Gateway  
 

 Historic Building: None 
 

 Conservation Area: None 

 
2.      EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
2.1 Officers have considered the proposal against the Council’s approved planning 

policies contained in the London Borough of Tower Hamlets adopted Core Strategy 
(2010),  Managing Development Document (2013) as amended, the London Plan 
(2011) and the National Planning Policy Framework 2011(as amended) and consider 
that the variations sought to the hours of operation are on balance acceptable as 
they would not cause any unduly detrimental impact on the adjoining residential 
community by reason of its noise or any associated disturbance or any  incidence of 
crime and disorder. As such, officers consider that the extended hours of operation 
would be acceptable in policy terms.  
 

3 RECOMMENDATION 
 

3.1 That the Committee resolve to GRANT planning permission. 
 

3.2 That the Corporate Director Development & Renewal is delegated authority to 
recommend the following conditions and informatives in relation to the following 
matters: 
 

3.3 Conditions 
 
§ Compliance with plans 
§ Compliance with Construction Management Plan  
§ Compliance with School Management Plan 
§ Compliance to ensure that the maximum number of students at 490 
§ Compliance with hours of operation (to be agreed by Members) 
§ Updated School Travel Plan to reflect new hours of operation 
§ Compliance with School Delivery and Service Management Plan 
§ Compliance with Flood Evacuation Plan 
§ Energy Strategy 

 
 

Page 19



 4 

3.4 Informatives 
 
§ Consultation with School Travel Plan Officer 

 
4 PROPOSAL AND LOCATION DETAILS 
 
4.1 The application proposal relates to five former light industrial units forming part of the 

Clipper House Industrial Complex. Members may recall that on the 15th May 2013, 
the Development Committee resolved to grant planning permission for the change of 
use of the light industrial units to form a secondary school (Use Class D1). The 
planning permission has been implemented and the school has been built out and 
occupied.  

 
4.2 Members may also recall that on 12 September 2013, the Development Committee 

resolved to grant a further planning permission under S73 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act (planning reference PA/13/01647) to allow for the variation of conditions 
5 (student numbers) to limit the maximum number of students on site to 490 and 
Condition 6 (hours of operation) to allow for the staggering and departure times of 
students and staff of the original planning permission (planning reference 
PA/13/00116). 
 

4.3 A further application is now being made to vary condition 6 (attached to planning 
reference PA/13/01647) to modify the arrival times for teachers and staff and to 
modify the operation times for the social enterprise business as shown in Table 1 
below :   
 
Table 1 

Approved Development under planning 
reference PA/13/01647:  

S73 application PA/13/02773  

  

Teachers and staff  
07:00am  - 23:00pm  

Teachers and staff  
6.30am - 23:00pm 

  

14 - 16 year old students  
09:30am  - 15:00pm  

14 - 16 year old students  
09:30am - 15:00pm  

  

16 - 19 year old students  
10:00am - 15:30pm  

16 - 19 year old students  
10:00 - 15:30pm   

  

Social enterprise units 
  
Nursery/Family Centre:  
Mondays to Saturdays 
10:00am  - 18:00pm    

Social enterprises units  
 
Nursery/Family Centre 

 Monday to Friday 07:00am to 20:00pm 
    Saturdays 8:00am to 18:00pm  

  

Cafe/Restaurant use  
Mondays to Saturdays 10:00am - 18:00 pm  

Cafe/Restaurant use  
Mondays to Friday 07:30am to 22:00pm,  
Saturdays 10:00am to 22:00pm 
Sundays 10:00am to 21:00 pm 

  

Gym/ Sports Hall 
Mondays to Sundays 10:00am - 18:00 pm 

Gym/ Sports Hall 
Monday to Friday 06:30 to 22:00 
Saturdays and Sundays between 08:00 
to 20:00 hours 

Page 20



 5 

 
               
4.4 Given, the applicant is seeking to vary a condition which was specifically subject to 

the Members resolution to grant previously, this matter is being reported back to the 
Development Committee for decision.  
 

4.5 The School is run and managed by City Gateway who are a charity based in Tower 
Hamlets who run women’s projects, youth training, youth centres and a social 
enterprise hub. Their aim is to assist disadvantaged local communities of Tower 
Hamlets that haven’t benefited from the area’s wider economic development. The 
proposed education centre would assist young people who haven’t achieved in 
mainstream education to enjoy learning, and gain vocational qualifications with the 
aim to move onto employment or further education.  
 

4.6 City Gateway gained ‘Free School’ status in early 2012 from the Department for 
Education (DfE).  

 
Site and Surroundings 
 

4.7 Clipper House is a light industrial complex located on the western side of Mastmaker 
Road. There are currently eight units of different sizes within the complex. The units 
are two storeys in height and are planned around an open courtyard with car parking 
spaces around the site. Two of the units are in active commercial use by small 
business: Unit 34 is occupied by Party Ingredients who are Private Caterers and WF 
Senate are Electrical Supplies Distributers who occupy unit 22. 
 

4.8 The site is neither listed nor located within a conservation area. There are no 
designated heritage assets within the immediate vicinity of the site.  
 

4.9 The site forms part of the Millennium Quarter site allocation within the Managing 
Development Document (MDD) which sets out the vision for the development of the 
area.  
 

4.10 Clipper House is one of the last remaining light industrial uses within the site 
allocation boundary. This marks the transition that has occurred from a mainly 
industrial area to a more residential area.  
 

4.11 Directly to the north of the site is Phoenix Heights which is a residential development 
with commercial uses at ground floor level. To the east of the site is the old Guardian 
Press Office site. All of the buildings have been demolished and the site is currently 
surrounded by a hoarding. The site is subject to pre-application discussions.  
 

4.12 To the south of the site is Gainsborough House which is a residential development. 
To the west of the site is a row of terraced houses which front Alpha Road. Numbers 
9 – 41 Alpha Road have rear gardens which face onto the application site.  
 

4.13 Relevant Planning History  
 

4.14 PA/13/00116: Full planning permission for the change of use of existing light 
industrial units (Use Class B1) (numbers 24, 26, 28, 30 and 32) to a secondary 
school (Use Class D1) offering vocational courses for 14-19 year olds. Approval 
dated 10/07/2013. 
 

4.15 PA/13/01647: S73 application to vary condition 5 (student numbers) and condition 6 
(hours of operation) of planning permission dated 10 July 2013, reference 

Page 21



 6 

PA/13/00116 for the "Change of use of existing light industrial units (Use Class B1) 
(numbers 24, 26, 28, 30 and 32) to a secondary school (Use Class D1) offering 
vocational courses for 14-19 year olds." 
 
Variation of Condition 5 (Student Numbers) to limit the maximum number of students 
on site to 490 
 
Variation of Condition 6 (Hours of Operation) staggering the arrival time of staff and 
students as follows: 
 

•••• Teachers and staff - 07:00 - 23:00 

•••• 14 - 16 year old students - 09:30 - 15:00 

•••• 16 - 19 year old students - 10:00 - 15:30 

•••• Social enterprise units - 10:00 - 18:00 
 
Approval dated 15/10/2013.  
 

4.16 PA/13/01936: Submission of details pursuant to condition no. 12 (post completion 
testing of the educational class rooms), of planning permission dated 10/07/2013, ref: 
PA/13/00116. Approval dated 12/09/2013. 

 
4.17 PA/13/01944: Submission of details pursuant to condition no. 10 (flood risk 

evacuation plan), of planning permission dated 10/07/2013, ref: PA/13/00116. 
Approval dated 03/10/2013. 
 

4.18 PA/13/02125: Submission of details pursuant to condition no. 9 (Delivery and service 
management plan), of planning permission dated 10/07/2013, ref: PA/13/00116. 
Approval dated 10/10/2013. 
 

4.19 PA/13/2313: Submission of detail pursuant to Condition 8 (School Travel Plan) of 
Planning Application reference number PA/13/01647 dated 15/10/2013. Approval 
dated 13/11/2013. 
 

4.20 PA/13/02315: Submission of detail pursuant to Condition 7 (Contamination) of         
Planning Application reference number PA/13/01647, dated 15/10/2013. Approval 
dated 07/11/2013.  
 

5 POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 

5.1 For details of the status of relevant policies see the front sheet for “Planning 
Applications for Determination” agenda items.  

 
5.2 The following policies are relevant to the application: 

 
5.3 Government Planning Policy Guidance/Statements  
 National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) (NPPF) 

Policy Statement – Planning for schools development (August 2011) 
 

5.4 Spatial Development Strategy for Greater London - London Plan 2011(LP as 
amended) 
 
3.18 Educational Facilities 
6.1 Strategic approach 
6.3 Assessing effects of development on transport capacity 

Page 22



 7 

6.7 Better streets and surface transport 
6.9 Cycling 
6.10 Walking 
6.12 Road network capacity 
6.13 Parking 
 

5.5 Tower Hamlets Core Strategy (adopted September 2010) (CS) 
 

SP08 Making connected Places 
SP09 Creating Attractive and Safe Streets and Spaces 
SP10 Creating Distinct and Durable Places 
 

5.6 Managing Development Document (adopted April 2013) (MDD) 
  

DM20 Supporting a Sustainable transport network 
DM22 Parking 
DM23 Streets and the public realm 
DM24 Place sensitive design 
DM25 Amenity 
 

5.7 Tower Hamlets Community Plan 
 

 The following Community Plan objectives relate to the application: 
 

• A Great Place to Live 

• A Prosperous Community 

• A Safe and Supportive Community 

• A Healthy Community 
 
6 CONSULTATION RESPONSE 

 
6.1 The views of the Directorate of Development & Renewal are expressed in the 

MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS section below. 
 

6.2 The following were consulted regarding the application: 
 
LBTH Transportation and Highways 

 
6.3 Highways are concerned that extending the hours of operation of the on-site social 

enterprises will result in a high proportion of new trips generated being made by 
private car.  
 

6.4 The proposals would allow the on-site social enterprises to operate when local on-
street parking restrictions are not in force providing a supply of local parking for staff 
and visitors. In addition, it is expected that the majority of on-site spaces occupied by 
school staff will be vacant at these times, again creating available parking for staff 
and visitors of the social enterprises.  
 

6.5 The impact of the on-site car parking permitted for use of the school (PA/13/00116) 
was assessed by highways based on the currently permitted hours of operation. 
Without further assurance that these spaces would absolutely not be available for 
staff and visitors for the social enterprises, Highways cannot support the application. 
 

Page 23



 8 

6.6 [Officer Comment: The applicant addressed these concerns and further comments 
were provided by the Borough Highway Officer.] 
 

6.7 Members should note that the applicant has confirmed that access to or from the 
majority of the on-site car parking is closed from 8pm daily but access to the three 
existing disabled spaces to the front of the site will continue to be available. 
 

6.8 In addition, the applicant has confirmed that they will amend the travel plan 
associated with the parent application to cover the proposed extended operations on 
the site. 
 

6.9 Given the above Highways has no objection to the development.  
 

6.10 [Officer Comment: It is noted that the applicant has already submitted a Travel Plan 
for discharge which was approved as listed in the planning history above. In light of 
the Borough of Highways Officer comments above this condition will be re-
introduced.  

 
LBTH Environmental Health – Noise and Vibration 
 

6.11 No objections were raised against the proposal as the extension of hours proposed 
does not exceed the normal definition of what are daytime evening hours as defined 
by the World Health Organisation.   
 
LBTH Plan Making Team  
 

6.12 To date no comments have been received.  
 

Directorate of Education, Social Care & Wellbeing 
 

6.13 To date no comments have been received.  
 
LBTH Energy  
 

6.14 To date no comments have been received.  
 

7 LOCAL REPRESENTATION 
 

7.1      A total of 218 neighbouring properties within the area shown on the map appended to 
this report were notified about the application and invited to comment. The local ward 
member was also consulted about the proposal. The application has also been 
publicised on site and in the local press.  The number of representations received 
from neighbours and local groups in response to notification and publicity of the 
application to date are as follows: 
 

 No of individual responses 0 Objecting: 4 Supporting: 0 
 

 No of petitions received: 1 in objection with 33 signatures 
 
7.2      A petition was submitted on behalf of the tenants and residents of Alpha Grove who 

expressed concerns that the amenity of adjoining residents would be adversely 
affected by the extended hours of opening of the scheme by virtue of the increased 
noise nuisance and that this would be compounded by the noise and educational 
use. In addition, three letters of representation were received raising concerns about 

Page 24



 9 

the level of noise, dirt and dust including increase in the incidence of antisocial 
behaviour associated with the new use.  
 

7.3 [Officer Comment: The proposed extensions of hours have been considered in the 
amenity and highway sections of this report. In respect of concerns about increase in 
crime or antisocial behaviour, the Council’s Crime Prevention Officer has been 
consulted and raised no objections to the extended hours of operation of the 
approved use.]  
 

8 MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
 
8.1 Section 73 of the Planning Act allows the variation or removal of a condition imposed 

on a planning permission. This application seeks to vary condition 6 of the consented 
permission.  
 

8.2 The development (i.e. the variation of condition 5 & 6 approved under 
PA/13/01647) which this application under s.73 seeks to amend has been judged 
acceptable in principle when it was considered at the 12 September 2013 
Development Committee where Members resolved to grant subject to conditions.   
Moreover when the original application was presented to the Development 
Committee on the 15 May 2013 this was also found to be acceptable.  
Government advice states that when assessing these types of applications, that 
local planning authorities should, in making their decisions, focus their attention 
on national or local policies or other material considerations which may have 
changed significantly since the original grant of permission, as well as the 
changes sought. 
 

8.3 Since the grant of planning permission in November 2013 there have been no 
changes in national or local policies. As such, this report focuses on the changes 
sought. However, at appendix 1 and 2 there are a copies of the planning reports and 
update reports presented to members on the 15 May 2013 and 12 September 2013 
to inform members 
 

8.4 The main planning issues raised by the application that the committee must consider 
are: 

 
§ Amenity 
§ Highways 
 
Principle of Development and Amenity 

 
8.5 The principle of the educational use has been established at this site through the 

previous grant of planning permission for a new secondary school. This school is 
now in operation. The main matter for consideration is the principle of varying 
condition 6 (hours of operation) to extend the hours for teachers at the site and to 
extend the hours of operation of the social enterprise units as follows: 

 

•••• Teachers and staff – 6.30am - 23:00pm 

•••• 14 - 16 year old students - 09:30am - 15:00pm (as approved under 
PA/13/01647) 

•••• 16 - 19 year old students - 10:00 - 15:30 (as approved under PA/13/01647) 
                   
                       Social Enterprises  
 

Page 25



 10 

•••• Nursery/Family Centre between Monday to Friday 07:00 to 20:00 & Saturdays 
08:00 to 18:00 hours; 

•••• Cafe/Restaurant use between Mondays to Friday 07:30 to 22:00, Saturdays 
10:00 to 22:00 & Sundays 10:00 to 21:00 hours; 

•••• Gym/ Sports Hall between Monday to Friday 06:30 to 22:00 & Saturdays and 
Sundays between 08:00 to 20:00 hours 

 
8.6 As consented, it was envisaged that City Gateway would deliver the vocational 

courses including sport and fitness, IT, customer services, beauty, childcare, media, 
youth work and hospitality and catering as ‘social enterprises’ which would interact 
directly with the community.  
 

8.7 The ‘social enterprises’ approved included a new community café (Use Class A3), 
staffed by local apprentices; a sports centre with gym, dance studio and indoor sports 
hall (Use Class D1); a media centre with up to date equipment for music studio, video 
and graphics work (Sui Generis); an OFSTED certified crèche available to deal with 
childcare needs (Use Class D1); and a hospitality enterprise able to provide catering 
services for weddings and functions (Use Class B2). The hospitality enterprise did 
not include on site hosting of events. It would only involve onsite food preparation. 

 
8.8 Strategic Policy SP10 of the CS and policy DM24 of the MDD seek to protect the 

amenity of residents of the borough. It is considered that the variation to the 
approved hours of the use will not have an unduly detrimental impact on the 
adjoining residential community.  

 
8.9 At the moment teachers are allowed on site from 7am. The current proposal seeks to 

allow teachers access to the site from 06.30am. Given the minor scale of the 
alteration to staff arrival times and that there are no changes proposed to staffing 
numbers (which will remain at 150 teachers), it  is not considered that allowing 
teachers to access the site half an hour earlier than what was initially approved would 
have an unduly detrimental impact on the amenity of residents within the area. 
Furthermore, the alterations to the arrival of staff times are unlikely to significantly 
alter the existing travel pattern to the school or the modes of transport pr10:00am - 
18:00 pm Mondays to Sundays previously agreed in the approved travel plan for the 
school. .  
 

8.10 The second alteration relates to the social enterprise units. This includes a 
nursery/family centre, café/restaurant and gym/sports halls. 
 

8.11 With regard to the Nursery / Family Centre, it is currently allowed to operate between 
10 am and 6pm and the applicant is seeking to amend this to 7am – 8pm Monday to 
Friday and 8am to 6pm on Saturdays. The nursery measures approximately 256 
square metres. The nursery is located fronting Mastmaker Road and is not directly 
adjacent to residential units the nearest being Phoenix Heights to the north 
approximately 45 metres from the unit.  Given the nature of this use it is not 
considered it would give rise to unduly detrimental impacts to the amenity of local 
residents. It is not considered that the Nursery / Family Centre would give rise to anti-
social behaviour given the nature of the use.  
 

8.12 With regard to the café / restaurant use, it is currently allowed to operate between 10 
am and 6pm and they are seeking to amend this to 7.30am – 8pm Monday to Friday 
and 8am to 6pm on Saturdays. The café measures approximately 174 square metres 
With regard to noise and disturbance officers have consulted the Environmental 
Health Officer who has raised no objection to these hours of operation. It is noted 
that the café is approximately 33 metres to the north of Gainsborough House the 

Page 26



 11 

nearest residential property.  It is considered that these hours of operation are 
reasonable and would not result in an unduly detrimental impact on amenity of local 
residents.  
 

8.13 With regard to anti-social behaviour and crime, the Crime Prevention Officer has 
raised no objections to the proposed increase in hours. Whilst, local residents have 
concerns that such uses would exacerbate existing anti-social behaviour and crime 
within the area there is no evidence to support this. The contrary is often the case in 
that active frontages result in more surveillance of the public realm.  
 

8.14 With regard to the gym/sports hall, it is currently allowed to operate between 10 am 
and 6pm and they are seeking to amend this to 6.30am – 10pm Monday to Friday, 
10am to 10pm on Saturdays and Sundays. The Gym would be located along the 
boundary wall with Phoenix Heights to the south and the separation distance 
between flank walls would be approximately 4.5 metres. However, the main access 
to the gym would be off Mastmaker Road which is approximately 19 metres from the 
boundary with Phoenix Heights. With regard to noise and disturbance officers have 
consulted the Environmental Health Officer who has raised no objection to these 
hours of operation. It is considered that the proposed hours of operation are 
reasonable and would not result in any unduly detrimental impact on amenity of local 
residents. The Gym would be located  
 

8.15 With regard to anti-social behaviour and crime, the Crime Prevention Officer has 
raised no objections to the proposed increase in the hours of operation of the existing 
use. Whilst, local residents have concerns that such uses would exasperate existing 
anti-social behaviour and crime within the area there is no evidence to support this.  
 
Conditions 

 
8.16 In line with paragraph 3.3 of this report it is proposed to retain the conditions (aside 

from those varied by this application) which were part of the original decision notice.  
 

Highways  
 

8.17 Policy SP07 of the CS states that secondary schools should be located in highly 
accessible locations and integrated into secondary and main movement routes. Also 
relevant is policy SP09 of the CS and Policy DM20 in the  MDD which seek to ensure 
that new development has no adverse impacts upon the safety and capacity of the 
road network by ensuring new development is appropriately located depending on its 
type and scale with developments generating a higher number of trips to be located 
in town centres and/or other areas well served by public transport.  
 

8.18 Initial comments from the Borough Highway Officer raised concerns about the 
potential use of the cark park at the site after hours. However, further information 
provided by the applicant has addressed this concern and their objection has been 
removed.  
 

8.19 The Borough Highway Officer has also noted that the Travel Plan will need to be 
updated to reflect the new hours of operation and this will be achieved through 
retaining the Travel Plan Condition.  

 
 
 
 

Page 27



 12 

 
      Human Rights 
 

8.20 Planning decisions can have Human Rights Act 1998 implications and in terms of 
relevant provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998, the following are particularly 
highlighted to Members:-  
 

8.21 Section 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998 prohibits authorities (including the Council 
as local planning authority) from acting in a way which is incompatible with the 
European Convention on Human Rights. "Convention" here means the European 
Convention on Human Rights, certain parts of which were incorporated into English 
law under the Human Rights Act 1998. Various Convention rights are likely to be 
relevant, including:- 

 
§ Entitlement to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an 

independent and impartial tribunal established by law in the determination of 
a person's civil and political rights (Convention Article 6). This includes 
property rights and can include opportunities to be heard in the consultation 
process; 

§ Rights to respect for private and family life and home. Such rights may be 
restricted if the infringement is legitimate and fair and proportionate in the 
public interest (Convention Article 8); and 

§ Peaceful enjoyment of possessions (including property). This does not impair 
the right to enforce such laws as the State deems necessary to control the 
use of property in accordance with the general interest (First Protocol, Article 
1). The European Court has recognised that "regard must be had to the fair 
balance that has to be struck between the competing interests of the 
individual and of the community as a whole". 

 
8.22   This report has outlined the consultation that has been undertaken on the planning 

application and the opportunities for people to make representations to the Council 
as local planning authority. 

 
8.23 Members need to satisfy themselves that the measures which are proposed to be 

taken to minimise, inter alia, the adverse effects of increased traffic generation on 
the highway and any noise associated with the use are acceptable and that any 
potential interference with Article 8 rights would be legitimate and justified. 

 
8.24   Both public and private interests are to be taken into account in the exercise of the 

Council's planning authority's powers and duties. Any interference with a 
Convention right must be necessary and proportionate. 

 
8.25  Members must, therefore, carefully consider the balance to be struck between 

individual rights and the wider public interest. 
 
8.26   As set out above, it is necessary, having regard to the Human Rights Act 1998, to 

take into account any interference with private property rights protected by the 
European Convention on Human Rights and ensure that the interference is 
proportionate and in the public interest. 

 
8.27   In this context, the balance to be struck between individual rights and the wider 

public interest has been carefully considered.  Officers consider that any 
interference with Convention rights is justified. Officers have also taken into account 
the mitigation measures governed by planning conditions to be entered into. 

 

Page 28



 13 

Equalities 
 

8.28 The Equality Act 2010 provides that in exercising its functions (which includes the 
functions exercised by the Council as Local Planning Authority), that the Council as a 
public authority shall amongst other duties have due regard to the need to- 
 
(a) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 

prohibited under the Act; 
(b)  Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected         

characteristic and persons who do not share it; 
(c) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
 

8.29 The protected characteristics set out in the Equality Act are: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual 
orientation. The Equality Act acknowledges that compliance with the duties set out 
may involve treating some persons more favourably than others, but that this does 
not permit conduct that would otherwise be prohibited under the Act. 
 

8.30 The proposal is for a non-denominational mixed sex secondary school which will 
improve the choice of schools and number of secondary school places within the 
borough, as such it is considered that any impact in terms of fostering relations and 
advancing equality with regard to sex, race, religion and belief will be positive.  
 

8.31 The proposed works associated with the change of use include creating accessible 
entrances to the buildings which would make the buildings more accessible at ground 
floor level which would improve access for persons with a disability. However, it is 
noted that persons with a disability requiring use of a wheelchair would only be able 
to access the ground floor level of the school. However, given that they can receive a 
full teaching experience or visitors can access all the key activities it is considered 
that this would not result in inequality.  
 

8.32 With regard to age, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, and sexual                                                             
orientation there are no identified equality considerations.   
 

9 CONCLUSION 
 

9.1 All other relevant policies and considerations have been taken into account.  
Planning permission should be supported for the reasons set out in 
RECOMMENDATION section of this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



 14 

APPENDIX 1  

Page 30



 15 

 

Committee: 
Development  

Date:  
15 May 2013 
 

Classification:  
Unrestricted 

Agenda Item Number: 
 

 

Report of:  
Director of Development and 
Renewal 
 
Case Officer: 
Mary O’Shaughnessy 

Title: Applications for Planning Permission  
 
Ref No:  PA/13/00116 (Full Planning Application) 
    
Ward: Millwall (February 2002 onwards) 

 
 
3.  APPLICATION DETAILS 
 
   
 Location: Units 24, 26, 28, 30 & 32, Mastmaker Road, London, 

E14 9UB  
 

 Existing Use: Light industrial (B Class Uses) 
 

 Proposal: Change of use of existing light industrial units (Use 
Class B1) (numbers 24, 26, 28, 30 and 32) to a 
secondary school (Use Class D1) offering vocational 
courses for 14-19 year olds. 
 

 Drawing and documents: 
 

Drawings: 
099 REV 0, 100 REV 0, 102 REV 0, 103 REV 0, 110 
REV 0, 111 REV 0, 201 REV 0, 202 REV 0, 210 REV 
0 and 211 REV 0. 
 
Documents: 

• CRQ Design and Access Statement REVA, 
dated January 2013, prepared by R H 
Partnership Architects. 

• Planning and Impact Statement, dated January 
2013, prepared by T P Bennett.   

• Marketing Report, dated January 2013, 
prepared by T P Bennett.  

• Transport Assessment, Ref: JNY7860-01A, 
prepared by RPS, dated 16 January 2013. 

• Environmental noise survey report, Ref: 12437-
R01-C, prepared by Sandy Brown, dated 17 
January 2013. 

• Energy Strategy Report REV 1.0, prepared by 
Atkins, dated 18 January 2013.  

• Mastmaker Court – School Management Plan, 
prepared by City Gateway, Dated 18 January 
2013.  

• Flood Risk Assessment, Ref: 131952 – R1 (0) 
– FRA, dated February 2013, prepared by Kier. 

• Construction Management Plan comprising  
o Kier Construction London Traffic Plan – 

4337, 

Page 31



 16 

o Kier Construction London City Gateway 
- TM Plan REVA, and; 

o Appendix D Traffic Management. 
 

 Applicant: City Gateway  
 

 Ownership: City Gateway  
 

 Historic Building: None 
 

 Conservation Area: None 

 
4. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 

 
4.1. Officers have considered the particular circumstances of this application against the 

Council’s approved planning policies contained in the London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets adopted Core Strategy (2010),  Managing Development Document (2013) 
as amended, the London Plan (2011) and the National Planning Policy Framework 
2012, and have found that: 
 

4.2. The proposed loss of light industrial floor space (B Class Uses) is considered 
acceptable in this instance. The applicant has demonstrated that the units have been 
vacant for approximately a year and have been actively marketed which accords with 
the requirements of DM15 of the Managing Development Document (2013). 
Consideration has also been given to the sites location within the Millennium Quarter 
site allocation within the Managing Development Document (2013), in that this does 
not require the assessment of the loss of employment floor space to comply with 
DM15 for strategic redevelopments. As such, the loss of employment floor space 
accords with strategic policy SP06 of the Core Strategy (2010) and DM15 of the 
Managing Development Document (2013). 
 

4.3. The change of use to a secondary school (Use Class D1) is considered acceptable 
given there is a need for a secondary school in this accessible location and this 
accords with policy 6.13 of the London Plan (2011), strategic policy SP07 of the Core 
Strategy (2010) and DM19 of the Managing Development Document (2013) 
Furthermore, the proposal accords with the National Planning Policy Framework and 
Planning policy statement – planning for schools development.  
 

4.4. With regard to impact on the safety and capacity of the surrounding highway network, 
subject to management of impacts through the suitable use of conditions the 
proposed school would not have an unduly detrimental impact on the highway 
network, and thus accords with strategic policies SP07 and SP09 of the Core 
Strategy (2010) and DM21 of the Managing Development Document (2013) which 
seek to manage the impact of new development on the borough highway network.  
 

4.5. The proposal includes minor alterations which are considered acceptable and in 
keeping with the design and appearance of the host building and accord with 
strategic policy SP10 of the Core Strategy (2010) and policy DM24 of the Managing 
Development Document (2013). These policies seek to ensure appropriate design 
within the borough. 
 

4.6. It is not considered that the proposed development would have an unduly detrimental 
impact on the amenity of existing residents which accords with strategic policy SP10 
of the Core Strategy (2010) and policy DM25 of the Managing Development 

Page 32



 17 

Document (2013). These policies seek to protect the amenity of residents of the 
borough. 
 

5. RECOMMENDATION 
 

5.1. That the Committee resolve to GRANT planning permission. 
 

5.2. That the Corporate Director Development & Renewal is delegated authority to 
recommend the following conditions and informatives in relation to the following 
matters: 
 

5.3. Conditions 
Compliance: 

§ Time Limit for implementation 3 years 
§ Compliance with plans 
§ Compliance with Construction Management Plan  
§ Compliance with School Management Plan 
§ Compliance with hours of operation (07:00 – 23:00) 

 
Prior to Commencement 

§ Contamination  
 
Prior to Occupation: 

§ Travel Plan including details of management of short stay car parking spaces.  
§ Delivery and Servicing Plan 
§ Flood Evacuation Plan 
§ Energy  
§ Post completion testing to demonstrate best endeavours to comply with Building 

Bulleting 98 with regard to noise.  
 

5.4. Informatives 
§ Consultation with School Travel Plan Officer 
 

6. PROPOSAL AND LOCATION DETAILS 
 

Proposal 
6.1. The proposal is for the change of use of three light industrial units which form part of 

the Clipper House Industrial Complex to a secondary school (Use Class D1). 
 

6.2. The secondary school would be for children aged 14 – 19 and would have capacity 
for 490 places (115 places for 14 – 16 year olds and 375 places for 16 – 19 year 
olds) and approximately 150 staff.  
 

6.3. The School would be managed and run by City Gateway who are a charity based in 
Tower Hamlets who run women’s projects, youth training, youth centres and a social 
enterprise hub. Their aim is to assist disadvantaged local communities of Tower 
Hamlets that haven’t benefited from the area’s wider economic development. The 
proposed education centre would assist young people who haven’t achieved in 
mainstream education to enjoy learning, and gain vocational qualifications with the 
aim to move onto employment or further education.  
 

6.4. City Gateway gained ‘Free School’ status in early 2012 from the Department for 
Education (DfE). They opened a Free School in September 2012 and currently are 
based at Ensign Court, Ensign Street and Limehouse Youth Centre, Limehouse 
Causeway. They currently have a capacity for 266 places and provide vocational 

Page 33



 18 

training for 14 – 19 year olds.  The intention is to move the Free School to Clipper 
House should planning permission be granted for the change of use.  
 
Site and Surroundings 

6.5. Clipper House is a light industrial complex located on the western side of Mastmaker 
Road. There are currently eight units of different sizes within the complex. The units 
are two storeys in height and are planned around an open courtyard with car parking 
spaces around the site. Two of the units are in active commercial use by small 
business: Unit 34 is occupied by Party Ingredients who are Private Caterers and WF 
Senate are Electrical Supplies Distributers who occupy unit 22. 
 

6.6. There is currently a boxing gym (with a ring) operating at Unit 28. However, there is 
no evidence on the statutory planning register that planning permission was ever 
granted for this use. It would appear that the use of the unit as a boxing gym is 
unauthorised and this is further discussed within the planning history section of this 
report. Prior to the use of the unit as a boxing gym it may have been in use as a 
church which was also unauthorised.   
 

6.7. The site is neither listed nor located within a conservation area. There are no 
designated heritage assets within the immediate vicinity of the site.  
 

6.8. The site forms part of the Millennium Quarter site allocation within the Managing 
Development Document (MDD) which sets out the vision for the development of the 
area.  
 

6.9. Clipper House is one of the last remaining light industrial uses within the site 
allocation boundary. This marks the transition that has occurred from a mainly 
industrial area to a more residential area. Directly to the north of the site is Phoenix 
Heights which is a residential development with commercial uses at ground floor 
level. To the east of the site is the old Guardian Press Office site. All of the buildings 
have been demolished and the site is currently surrounded by a hoarding. The site is 
subject to pre-application discussions. To the south of the site is Gainsborough 
House which is a residential development. To the west of the site is a row of terraced 
houses which front Alpha Road. Numbers 9 – 41 Alpha Road have rear gardens 
which face onto the application site.  
 

6.10. Relevant Planning History  
 

6.11. PA/97/00651 – The LPA granted planning permission on the 14 August 1997 for Unit 
26 for the “Change of use from B1/B8 to car servicing and valeting.” 
 

6.12. ENF/13/00077 – The planning enforcement team are investigating the unauthorised 
use of unit 28 as a boxing gym (with a ring).  
 
 

7. POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 

7.1. For details of the status of relevant policies see the front sheet for “Planning 
Applications for Determination” agenda items.  
 

7.2. The Managing Development Document was adopted by Full Council on 17th April 
2013. As such it has full weight as part of the Council’s ‘development plan’ in 
determining applications. Full Council also agreed to remove the retained UDP and 
IPG policies. As such these policies should no longer be used to determine planning 
applications. 

Page 34



 19 

 
7.3. Please note that Full Council also agreed to change the name of the document from 

the Managing Development DPD to the Managing Development Document.” 
 

7.4. The following policies are relevant to the application: 
 

7.5. Government Planning Policy Guidance/Statements  
 National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) (NPPF) 

Policy Statement – planning for schools development (August 2011) 
 

7.6. Spatial Development Strategy for Greater London - London Plan 2011 (LP) 
3.18 Educational Facilities 
5.1 Climate change mitigation 
5.2 Minimising carbon dioxide emissions 
5.3 Sustainable design and construction 
5.4 Retrofitting 
6.1 Strategic approach 
6.3 Assessing effects of development on transport capacity 
6.7 Better streets and surface transport 
6.9 Cycling 
6.10 Walking 
6.12 Road network capacity 
6.13 Parking 
 

7.7. Tower Hamlets Core Strategy (adopted September 2010) (CS) 
SP04 Creating a Green and Blue Grid 
SP05 Dealing with waste 
SP08 Making connected Places 
SP09 Creating Attractive and Safe Streets and Spaces 
SP10 Creating Distinct and Durable Places 
SP11 Working towards a Zero Carbon Borough 
SP12 Delivering placemaking 
SP13 Planning Obligations 
 

7.8. Managing Development Document (adopted April 2013) (MDD)  
DM1 Development within the town centre hierarchy 
DM2 Local shops 
DM14 Managing Waste 
DM20 Supporting a Sustainable transport network 
DM22 Parking 
DM23 Streets and the public realm 
DM24 Place sensitive design 
DM25 Amenity 
DM29 Achieving a zero-carbon borough and addressing climate change 
DM30 Contaminated Land 

 
7.9. Supplementary Planning Documents 
  Planning Obligations SPG 2012 
 
7.10. Tower Hamlets Community Plan 
 The following Community Plan objectives relate to the application: 

• A Great Place to Live 

• A Prosperous Community 

• A Safe and Supportive Community 

Page 35



 20 

• A Healthy Community 
 
8. CONSULTATION RESPONSE 

 
8.1. The views of the Directorate of Development & Renewal are expressed in the 

MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS section below. 
 

8.2. The following were consulted regarding the application: 
 
LBTH Transportation and Highways 
 
Car Parking 

8.3. The site, despite the moderate PTAL score of 3, is located in an area of good public 
transport connectivity, within a short walk to DLR services from South Quay station, 
with nearby onward Jubilee Line connections from Canary Wharf (itself within 
reasonable walking distance from the site) and several bus routes offering 
connections to many local destinations. Considering these factors the Borough 
Highway Officer is content that the location for the school satisfies Core Strategy 
policy SP07 which seeks to ensure that secondary schools should be located in 
highly accessible locations, to be integrated into the secondary and main movement 
routes, as they generate trips from a wider catchment area. 
 

8.4. Car parking attached to the units proposed for school use is comprised of a total of 
55 spaces.  This is a substantial level of car parking and is considered excessive for 
the proposed use. Highways therefore welcome that the proposals would result in a 
significant reduction in the number of on-site car parking spaces with seven retained 
to the rear of the site for use by staff only and five existing spaces will be modified to 
provide three spaces for disabled users to the front of the site. This level of provision 
is acceptable.  
 

8.5. The applicant also proposes to retain 10 spaces at the front of the site for short stay 
parking although they have not counted these spaces within the total spaces on site.  
 

8.6. The Highway Officer requested further information at the application stage on the 
management of these spaces including the time limit for occupation, how the school 
would enforce this  and for all operations that take place on the site.  
 

8.7. [Officer Comment: The applicant spoke with the Borough Highway Officer and 
provided clarity and further information around this matter.] 
 

8.8. Final comments from the Borough Highway Officer advise that it has been agreed 
that the travel plan should contain a section that would cover the on-going 
management and monitoring of the short stay car parking spaces by the occupant of 
site. To secure this, the travel plan condition should be worded as such to ensure this 
element of the travel plan is secured. The Borough Highway Officer advised this 
approach was acceptable and that the matter had been resolved.    
 

8.9. [Officer Comment: The travel plan condition would be worded as requested to 
ensure detail of the management of the short stay car parking spaces.] 
 

School Travel Plan 
8.10. It is noted that a draft School Travel Plan (STP) has been submitted by the applicant. 

A final version should be a secured by planning condition and should be developed 
following the guidance of the School Travel Plan officer. 
 

Page 36



 21 

8.11. A STP should include a section on the management of the short stay car parking 
spaces located to the east of unit 28.  
 

8.12. [Officer Comment: A STP would be secured via condition as requested. The 
applicant would be advised via an informative to develop the STP in conjunction with 
the Council’s STP Officer. ] 
 

Cycle Parking  
8.13. The level of cycle parking proposed is in excess of the LBTH and London Plan 

minimum requirements for students, staff and visitors and is welcomed in this 
respect. The plans show that all parking provision will be of the Sheffield stand type 
preferred by Highways.  
 

8.14. The Borough Highway Officer had requested that the stands be sheltered and that 
there should be separate allocation for staff and students.  
 

8.15. [Officer Comment: Following discussions with the applicant it was established that 
their preference would be to have uncovered cycle shelters in order to avoid the 
shelters being used as smoking areas. They also noted that they would prefer to 
have the cycle parking allocation linked to the year group’s location in order to 
encourage cycling. However, they did note that this would be monitored through the 
STP.] 
 

8.16. Final comments from the Borough Highway Officer advised this approach was 
acceptable and that the matter had been resolved.    
 

Servicing 
8.17. The applicant proposes the school will use the internal car parking areas - 

predominantly the internal courtyard - for deliveries and service vehicles in keeping 
with the existing arrangements, which the Highways officer considers acceptable. 
The applicant proposes to maintain the existing waste collection arrangements; the 
Waste management team should be consulted on this.  

 
8.18. [Officer Comment: The Waste Management Team were consulted and raised no 

objection to the proposals.] 
 

Construction 
8.19. Mastmaker Road is a relatively narrow street. Construction vehicles parked on the 

kerbside adjoining the application site would block the passage vehicles attempting 
to pass on this section. To help ensure that construction of the development 
proceeds with the minimum amount of disruption to the safety and operation of the 
highway network use of the on-site parking areas should be maximised. The detailed 
arrangements for this should be presented for approval (by Highways) in a 
Construction Management plan (CMP); to be secured by condition. 
 

8.20. [Officer Comment: A CMP has been submitted and reviewed by the Borough 
Highway Officer who has no further queries with regard to this matter. The CMP 
would be approved as part of the approved documents and would need to be 
complied with. No further information is required with regard to the CMP.] 
 

Conclusion 
8.21. Highways sought further information as outlined above, and annotated in ‘officer 

comments’. Subject to relevant conditions, the Highways section are supportive of 
the proposal. 
 

Page 37



 22 

LBTH Environmental Health – Contaminated Land 
 

8.22. The submitted Phase 1 Report has been reviewed. It was noted that this appeared to 
be a scoping report. However, from a review of the design and access statement it is 
evident there would be limited ground works. However, there is concern with regard 
to the outdoor nursery play area.  
 

8.23. It is recommended that soil samples are retrieved and tested from all areas of 
landscaped area, with appropriate remedial works if required to be carried out prior to 
occupation. 
 

8.24. A full blown contaminated land condition might be too onerous but alternative 
wording has been suggested which would suffice.   
 

8.25. [Officer Comment: The requested condition would be attached as requested.] 
 
LBTH Environmental Health – Noise and Vibration 
 

8.26. The proposed development shall comply with the requirement of the Building Bulletin 
93 (Acoustics of Schools) and Regulation E4 of Building Regulation Approved 
Document E 2003, which requires the following: 
 
“Each room or other space in a school building shall be designed and constructed in 
such a way that it has the acoustic conditions and the insulation against disturbance 
by noise appropriate to its intended use.”  
 

8.27. The noise survey submitted by Sandy Brown Associates on-behalf of the developer 
has been reviewed and the noise levels for the Plant appear to meet BS4142 criteria 
of L90 - 10dB(A) at the nearest facade. Planning can therefore be considered.  
 

8.28. [Officer Comment: The applicant has advised that given the constraints of the 
existing building they may not be able to fully comply with BB93. It is suggested that 
the condition be worded that they use best endeavours to comply with BB93. It is 
noted that the DfE have previously advised that Free School are required to comply 
with the Independent School Regulations and that Ofsted would be carrying out 
separate review to ensure they are satisfied the building complies with the relevant 
standards. As such, officers consider ti is sufficient to require the developer to use 
best endeavours to accord with BB93.] 
 
LBTH Plan Making Team  
 

8.29. The Plan Making Team raise no objection to the principle of the loss of the 
employment floor use or the proposed educational use.  

 
Directorate of Education, Social Care & Wellbeing 
 

8.30. City Gateway has worked with the Council providing work-based learning.   This 
proposal will allow continuing partnership working with local schools.   Additional 
youth provision out of normal school hours will contribute to the range services 
available for young people.  
 
Environment Agency 

 
8.31. The Environment Agency (EA) raised an objection to the application because a Flood 

Risk Assessment (FRA) had not been submitted with the application. 

Page 38



 23 

 
8.32. The applicant submitted an FRA and the EA removed their objection. They also 

advised that the FRA identified that a flood evacuation plan could be developed if 
deemed necessary. The requirement for a flood evacuation plan is a matter for the 
council to determine.  
 

8.33. [Officer Comment: A flood evacuation plan would be secured via condition should 
planning permission be granted.] 
 
LBTH Energy  
 

8.34. The submitted information outlines the intentions to reduce energy CO2 emissions 
through energy efficiency measures and system upgrade works.  
 

8.35. The energy officer considers this appropriate in this specific instance due to the 
application being a change of use application and not including any extensions or 
new build works.     
 

8.36. The energy strategy notes that the upgrades will deliver CO2 savings of 19% 
compared to Building Regulation L2B requirements. 
 

8.37. If a recommended for approval the energy officer recommends that a condition be 
attached for the applicant to submit full details of the proposed energy efficiency and 
system upgrade works to deliver a minimum 19% reduction in CO2 emissions. The 
appropriate energy modelling output sheets must be submitted to demonstrate CO2 
savings achievable. 
 

8.38. [Officer Comment: This matter would be secured via condition should planning 
permission be granted.] 
 

9. LOCAL REPRESENTATION 
 

9.1. A total of 215 neighbouring properties within the area shown on the map appended to 
this report were notified about the application and invited to comment. The 
application has also been publicised on site and in the local press.  The number of 
representations received from neighbours and local groups in response to notification 
and publicity of the application to date are as follows: 
 

  
No of individual responses 

 
3 

 
Objecting: 2 

 
Supporting: 1 

 No of petitions received: 1 in objection with 35 signatures 
 
9.2. The following issues were raised in representations that are material to the 

determination of the application, and they are addressed in the next section of this 
report. For completeness, all issues raised are summarised. The full representations 
are available to view on the case file.  
 

9.3. Concern about an increase in anti-social behaviour given there are already problems 
within the area.  
 

9.4. Concern about increased noise levels as a result of the educational use.  
 

9.5. Concern about the security of local residents.  
 

Page 39



 24 

9.6. [Officer Comment: With regard to security concerns of local residents it is noted that 
this relates to existing crime within the area. It is noted that there is no direct link 
between educational uses and an increase in crime. Furthermore, the activity created 
by the café and beauty salon would increase surveillance within the area. Finally, the 
school would be well managed and this would be secured via a School Management 
Plan. As such, it is not considered that the proposed use would have an unduly 
detrimental impact on security of local residents.]  
 

9.7. A petition was submitted which raised concern because they believe the impact on 
the local community and its existing businesses; traders and residents would be 
negatively affected.  
 

9.8. [Officer Comment: The submitted petition provides no further details about the type 
of concerns raised. However, the impacts of the proposal are discussed in full within 
the main body of the report.]  
 

 
10. MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 

 
10.1. The main planning issues raised by the application that the committee must consider 

are: 
 

§ Land Use 
§ Highways 
§ Amenity 
§ Design and Layout 
§ Energy and Sustainability  
§ Planning Contributions and Community Infrastructure Levy 
§ Human Rights 
§ Equalities 
 
Land Use 
 

10.2. The site currently provides 3741 square metres of vacant commercial floor space (B 
Class Uses) arranged over five units within the Clipper House Complex. The main 
pedestrian and vehicular access is from Mastmaker Road. 
 

10.3. The proposal is for the change of use of units 24, 26, 28, 30 and 32 to an education 
use. City Gateway would run the vocational secondary school as a Free School 
receiving funding direct from the Department for Education (DfE).  
 

10.4. Unit 24 and 26 are located in the north-eastern corner of the site and would provide 
teaching and training space for 14-16 year old students. These units would include 
an outdoor seating area and hub where students could have lunch. The training of 14 
– 16 year olds who are still required to be in full time education would be more in 
keeping with a normal secondary school with students attending Monday – Friday. 
Classes would run from 10am to 4pm. There would be 115 places for 14-16 year 
olds. For the most part this part of the school would operate solely within units 24 and 
26. 

 
10.5. Units 28, 30 and 32 are located in the south–western corner of the site. They would 

provide teaching and training facilities for the 16-19 year old students. There would 
be 375 places for 16 – 19 year olds and they would visit the site 16 hours a week. 
They would either attend site Monday – Wednesday or Wednesday – Friday. They 
would be in training the other two days.   

Page 40



 25 

 
10.6. The school includes a nursery, café, media room, and a hair and beauty salon. The 

purpose of these ancillary uses is to provide on-site training opportunities for 
students. However, they would also be functioning businesses which would be 
accessible to the public. 
 

10.7. Unit 32 is spread over two floors and contains the main teaching and training spaces 
and includes a sports hall and gym. The main entrance is from within the site along 
the northern elevation of Unit 32.   
 

10.8. Unit 28 would provide a media facility for students.  
 
10.9. Unit 30 would provide a nursery at ground floor level. The nursery would be 

accessed from the east (off Mastmaker Road) and would have a drop-off and pick-off 
area in front of the unit. There would also be an enclosed play area for the nursery 
students at the rear of the unit.  
 

10.10. Unit 32 provides the main teaching and training areas. However it would also include 
a café fronting Cassilis Road. Adjacent to the café would be a hair and beauty salon. 
 
Loss of Employment Space: 

10.11. The application site forms part of the Millennium Quarter site allocation within the 
Managing Development Document (2013) (MDD). The allocation site is 22.29 
hectares. The vision for the site allocation is for a comprehensive mixed use 
development to provide a strategic housing development and a district heating 
facility. Future development would also include commercial floor space, open space 
and other compatible uses.  
 

10.12. DM15 (1) of the adopted MDD aims to protect active and viable employment uses 
unless it can be shown, through a marketing exercise, that the site has been actively 
marketed (for approximately 12 months) or that the site is unsuitable for continued 
employment use due to its location, viability, accessibility, size and condition. 
Paragraph 15.4 of the supporting text outlines that this part of the policy doesn’t 
apply to site allocations albeit it clarifies that this is to allow the strategic 
redevelopment of these site allocations. It is noted that this is a change of use 
application and not a comprehensive redevelopment of the site.  
 

10.13. A Marketing Report prepared by TP Bennett was submitted with the application. 
 

10.14. Unit 30 and 32 have been vacant since 2009. They were first marketed by PSK 
Knighton based in the West End from early 2009. This involved placing boards on the 
units as well as putting details on various property systems and mailing exercises. 
From mid – 2012 Colliers CRE took over the marketing and undertook similar 
exercises. 
 

10.15.  Unit 24 and 26 have been vacant since 2011.  
 
10.16. With regard to the Boxing gym located in Unit 28, the Planning Enforcement Team 

have advised that from the information available it is likely the use began in April 
2010 as that is when they first started paying Business rates for the property.  There 
is no further information on Council records and no planning permission for this use 
has ever been granted; as such the use is not lawful, due its being only three years in 
situ. Given, this is an unlawful use its loss can be considered and furthermore it is 
noted that the unit may have been vacant if it had not been occupied by an unlawful 

Page 41



 26 

use.  Notwithstanding, the applicant has advised that they are assisting the boxing 
gym with finding a new location.  
 

10.17. During March and April 2012 Richard Hull Property Consultants acting for the owner 
undertook a further marketing exercise for all the units which included sending out 
4200 letters. The site was also advertised via various property databases. 
Essentially, circa 500 commercial/industrial agents within London would have been 
aware the property was being marketed.  Onsite boards were also erected.  
 

10.18. As a result of this marketing campaign very little interest from traditional 
industrial/warehouse operators was received. They did receive several enquiries 
from alternative users such as gyms/sport halls and City Gateway who are the 
applicant for this application.  

 
10.19. During site visits marketing boards were observed.  

 
10.20. In conclusion, four of the units have been vacant for some time, two since 2009 and 

two since 2011. During this time they have been actively marketed. Unit 28 has also 
been marketed however, there has been occupied by a boxing gym which is 
unlawful.  
 

10.21. The marketing report has been examined and in light of the fact that DM15 (1) 
doesn’t apply to site allocations is considered sufficient in this instance to 
demonstrate that the units have been vacant for more than a year and that they have 
been marketed.  To conclude, the loss of employment floor space accords with policy 
and would be acceptable in this instance.  
 
Principle of School: 

10.22. The proposal is for the change of use to a secondary school (Use Class D1) and this 
section of the report will focus on the land use implications of the proposed 
educational use.  
 

10.23. The NPPF states that: 
 

“The Government attaches great importance to ensuring that a sufficient choice of 
school places is available to meet the needs of existing and new communities. Local 
planning authorities should take a proactive, positive and collaborative approach to 
meeting this requirement, and to development that will widen choice in education. 
They should:  

§ give great weight to the need to create, expand or alter schools;  
§ and work with schools promoters to identify and resolve key planning issues 

before applications are submitted.” 
 

10.24. Furthermore, Policy Statement – planning for schools development clearly states 
that: 

 
“There should be a presumption in favour of the development of state-funded 
schools, as expressed in the National Planning Policy Framework.” 
 

10.25. State-funded schools are defined by the policy statement and include ‘Free Schools’.  
 

10.26. Policy 3.18 of the London Plan supports proposals which enhance education and 
skills provision including change of use to educational purposes. It continues to state 
that: 
 

Page 42



 27 

“Proposals for new schools should be given positive consideration and should only 
be refused where there are demonstrable negative local impacts which substantially 
outweigh the desirability of establishing a new school and which cannot be 
addressed through the appropriate use of planning conditions or obligations.” 
 

10.27. The policy also supports proposals which maximise the extended or multiple use of 
educational facilities for community or recreational use. Finally the policy encourages 
co-location of services between schools to maximise land use.  
 

10.28. Part 2, of strategic policy SP07 of the Core Strategy (2010) (CS), seeks to increase 
the provision of both primary and secondary education facilities to meet an increasing 
population. Part 3, of the policy sets out the criteria for the assessment of new 
secondary schools and states that: 

 
“Secondary schools should be located in highly accessible locations, to be integrated 
into the secondary and main movement routes, as they generate trips from a wider 
catchment area.” 
 

10.29. Part 3 of the policy supports co-location and clustering of services as well as the 
encouragement of the use of schools after hours. 
 

10.30. DM18 of the MDD sets out criteria for the assessment of new schools and states that 
they should be located where:- 

 
i. a site has been identified for this use or a need for this use has been 

demonstrated; 
ii. the design and layout accords with relevant standards; 
iii. for existing schools, there is no net loss of school play space; and 
iv. the location of schools outside of site allocations ensure accessibility and an 

appropriate location within their catchments.  
 

10.31. The proposal is for the creation of new vocational secondary school (Use Class D1) 
which is not located on an allocated school site. Policy advises that the location of 
new schools will be guided by the criteria listed above. This provides a positive 
approach to the development of state funded schools including ‘free schools’, 
ensuring they are located where they can be easily accessed and that they provide a 
high quality teaching environment. 
 

10.32. Given the site is not allocated for an education use, consideration is given to the 
need for a new secondary school. The Children, Schools and Families Directorate 
have advised that there is a steeply rising need for additional school places in Tower 
Hamlets.   The population is rising due to both rising birth rates and new residential 
developments.   In the period 2012 to 2022 it is projected that the total school roll of 5 
-16 year olds in Tower Hamlets will increase by 38%, from 34,172 to 47,069. This 
equates to a need for 12,897 additional school places. As such, the proposal accords 
with part (i) of the policy given there is a need for additional secondary school places 
within the borough. Furthermore, it is noted that the need for a secondary school 
within this area has also been assessed by the Department for Education as part of 
the application for funding for a ‘Free School’. In conclusion the proposed vocational 
secondary school would have a capacity of 490 spaces would contribute to the 
delivery of secondary school places in accordance with policy.  
 

10.33. With regard to part (ii) design and layout this is discussed at paragraphs 8.75 - 8.81 
of this report.  Part (iii) does not apply in this instance given the proposal does not 
involve the loss of school play space.  

Page 43



 28 

 
10.34. The Borough Highway Officer has advised that despite the Public Transport 

Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 3 the site is located within an accessible location as 
evidenced by the local bus routes, South Quay DLR and access to the Jubilee Line 
at Canary Wharf. With regard to part (iv) of the policy it is noted that the site is 
located in an accessible location. The catchment for the school would be borough 
wide and in light of the accessible location students would be able to access the 
school by public transport from around the borough. As such, the proposed location 
would be acceptable with regard to part (iv) of the policy.  

 
10.35. To conclude, in land use terms, the principle of an educational use accords with 

policy given there is a need for a new secondary school and it meets the other tests 
of the policy. Furthermore, it accords with national policy which encourages 
educational uses.  

 
10.36. The applicant has made reference to their intention to allow local community groups 

use the school outside of school hours. The principle of shared facilities and co-
location is promoted by policy and the sharing of school facilities would be 
acceptable. 

 
10.37. City Gateway deliver a number of vocational courses including sport and fitness, IT, 

customer services, beauty, childcare, media, youth work and hospitality and catering 
that also work as ‘social enterprises’ and interact directly with the community.  
 

10.38. The ‘social enterprises’ would range from a new community café (Use Class A3), 
staffed by local Apprentices; a sports centre with gym, dance studio and indoor 
sports hall (Use Class D1); a media centre with up to date equipment for music 
studio, video and graphics work (Sui Generis); an OFSTED certified crèche available 
to deal with childcare needs (Use Class D1); and a hospitality enterprise able to 
provide catering services for weddings and functions (Use Class B2). The hospitality 
enterprise would not include on site hosting of events. It would only involve onsite 
food preparation. These would all be ancillary uses associated with the secondary 
school.  
 

10.39. These ‘social enterprises' would provide services to members of the local community; 
a number would be accessible during the day time such as the cafe and a number 
also available in the evening and weekends such as the community gym and sports 
hall. These ‘social enterprises’ would develop employment opportunities for local 
people in the area as well as bring much needed community services. 
 

10.40. The proposed nursery use (Use Class D1) is suitably sited facing Mastmaker Road 
where there would be a drop-off and pick-up zone for parents. Furthermore, 
dedicated play space for the nursery use would be available at the rear of the 
existing unit.  
 

10.41. As part of the proposal, the vocational school would have a café (use class A3) 
where students would receive training about the services industry. The café would 
face the corner of Mastmaker Road and Cassilis Road, which forms part of unit 32. 
Local residents could also use the café, which would have an entrance from Cassilis 
Road.   
 

10.42. The proposed ‘social enterprises’ would be ancillary to the main education use of the 
units and would form an integral part of the vocational teaching offer. In land use 
terms, the principle of the ancillary ‘social enterprises’ would be acceptable and 
accord with policy. Furthermore, the ancillary uses associated with the vocational 

Page 44



 29 

secondary school fit in with the overall vision of City Gateway and would contribute to 
creating employment opportunities both for students and local residents.  

 
Highways  
 

10.43. Policy SP07 of the CS states that secondary schools should be located in highly 
accessible locations and integrated into secondary and main movement routes. Also 
relevant is policy SP09 of the CS and DM20 of the MDD which seek to ensure that 
new development has no adverse impacts upon the safety and capacity of the road 
network by ensuring new development is appropriately located depending on its type 
and scale with developments generating a higher number of trips to be located in 
town centres and/or other areas well served by public transport.  
 

10.44. The proposal is for the creation of a new vocational secondary school with a 
maximum capacity of 490 places for students and 150 teachers and staff.  
 

10.45. The site is accessible by public transport with bus stops located a short walk away on 
Marsh Wall. The bus stops on Marsh Wall are approximately a two to three minute 
walk from the proposed school site (approximately 190 metres). There is also a bus 
stop at Westferry Road (Byng Street stop) to the west of the site which is 
approximately 400 metres from the site (four to five minute walk). The area has a 
Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 3 which indicates ‘moderate’ level of 
accessibility.   
 

10.46. There are a total of five bus routes operating within 400 metres of the site. The 
service from Stratford to Asda (Crossharbour) stops at the Marsh Wall bus stops. 
The D3 (London Chest Hospital to Asda (Crossharbour), D7 (Poplar to Mile End 
Station), 135 (Moorefield’s Eye Hospital to Asda (Crossharbour)),   and N550 
(Trafalgar Square to Canning Town Station) services stop at Westferry Road (Byng 
Street Stop).These services provide links to Canary Wharf, Poplar, Bow, Stratford, 
Shoreditch, Liverpool Street and Limehouse.  
 

10.47. South Quay DLR station is located four to five minute walk of the proposed school 
site (approximately 380 metres). Finally the centre of Canary Wharf, including the 
Jubilee Line station is approximately six to seven minute walk from the proposed 
school site (circa 550 metres).   
 

10.48. Mastmaker Road routes traffic north to south. It is a single carriageway road and is 
street lit along its length with footways on either side of the carriageway up to four 
metres in width. Mastmaker Road provides access to various business units and 
residential units and is subject to a 30 mile per hour speed restriction.  

 
10.49. The site has existing vehicular access from Mastmaker Road. The site has a total of 

84 car parking spaces with 38 spaces at the front of the units facing onto Mastmaker 
Road, 17 spaces within around the central courtyard within the site and 29 spaces at 
the rear of the site.  
 

10.50. The main pedestrian entrance to the school would be from Mastmaker Road.  
Students would arrive at the school between 08:30 and 10:00 each school day, the 
vast majority arriving by foot. During the morning arrival window, City Gateway staff 
would be in attendance both outside and inside the campus area to ensure safe and 
timely arrival of the students to the training units. There would be designated pupil 
walkways to ensure that students use the safest access route to their building. This 
would also serve to minimise disruption to the existing trading commercial units.  
 

Page 45



 30 

10.51. During the school day there would be very little movement between the buildings. 
Break and lunch times would be staggered and students would not be allowed to 
leave the training units without prior agreement. Any students moving between 
buildings, for example to use the sports facilities would be accompanied by a 
member of staff.  
 

10.52. At the end of the teaching day (16:00) staff would be in attendance outside when the 
students leave the campus to ensure their safe and timely dispersal.  
 

10.53. Servicing, disabled parking, cycle parking and refuse would all be provided on-site. 
 

Car Parking and Cycle Parking: 
10.54. There are a total of 84 existing car parking spaces on site of which City Gateway 

would be allocated 55. City Gateway do not intend to use all of the spaces and this is 
welcome given the level of provision would not accord with maximum parking 
standards within the MDD.  
 

10.55. City Gateway School would retain ten car parking spaces for the use of staff only. 
Three would be accessible spaces located to the front of unit 30. The level of car 
parking provision is acceptable and accords with policy.  
 

10.56. There would also be pick-up and drop-off zone to the front of unit 28 for the use of 
the nursery. The reduced level of car parking would be acceptable and accord with 
policy.  
 

10.57. There would be 84 cycle parking spaces which exceed policy standards which 
require a provision of 64 cycle stands. The type of stands would be Sheffield stands 
which accords with policy. It had been requested that details of shelters for the 
stands be provided. However, following further discussion with the applicant it was 
established that the reason for not providing a shelter was to ensure the bike stands 
would not be used as a smoking shelter. On balance officers consider that in this 
instance the provision of uncovered cycle parking would be acceptable.  
 

10.58. With regard to the provision of separate cycle parking for staff and students this 
would be monitored by the travel plan. The borough highway officer has accepted the 
principle of having mixed provision given this allows allocation of cycle parking to the 
different units.  
 

10.59. Subject to control of the drop-off and pick-up zone to ensure this is not used for car 
parking, the level of car parking provision and cycle parking provision is considered 
acceptable and accords with policy DM22 and the parking standards within the MDD. 
The management of the drop-off and pick-off zone would be managed via the School 
Travel Plan.  

 
Travel Plan: 

10.60. The purpose of a School Travel Plan is to encourage sustainable means of transport 
for staff, students and visitors. A draft travel plan has been provided by the applicant 
which has been reviewed by the Borough Highway Officer. A final version would be 
secured via condition and this should be developed in conjunction with the Council’s 
School Travel Plan Officer.  
 
Servicing: 

10.61. The applicant proposes the school would use the internal car parking areas - 
predominantly the internal courtyard - for deliveries and service vehicles in keeping 
with the existing arrangements. The Borough Highway Officer agrees that this would 

Page 46



 31 

be acceptable. The applicant proposes to maintain the existing waste collection 
arrangement. The Waste management team have raised no objection to this.  
 

10.62. It is not considered that the servicing of the existing two units which are in 
commercial use would be unduly affected by the proposed school. They would retain 
their existing parking and servicing arrangements. Furthermore, students would not 
be wandering independently between buildings during the day. If students needed to 
move between units they would be accompanied by staff and this is set out in the 
School Management Plan. Compliance with this plan would be secured via condition. 
 

10.63. Pedestrian routes around the site for students would be clearly delineated as shown 
on plan number 700 REVCP1. Furthermore, at arrival and departure times staff 
would be supervising students. It is considered that all of these measures would 
ensure the safety of students and also ensure servicing of the existing units could 
continue.  
 
Construction:  
 

10.64. To help ensure that construction of the development proceeds with the minimum 
amount of disruption to the safety and operation of the highway network, use of the 
on-site parking areas should be maximised.  
 

10.65. The applicant has provided a Construction Management Plan (CMP) which has been 
reviewed by the Borough Highway Officer, who is satisfied with the details. As such, 
a condition to ensure compliance with the CMP would be attached to the planning 
permission.   

 
Conclusion: 

10.66. The proposed site is located in an accessible location which satisfies policy 
requirement of SP07 of the CS which requires secondary schools to be located in 
accessible locations. Furthermore, the level of car and cycle parking accords with 
policy. The servicing and waste collection would happen on site which would be 
acceptable. Finally, construction impacts have been considered and would limit 
impact on the highway. Subject to the provision of a Travel Plan, the development 
would be carried out in accordance with the CMP; it is considered that the proposed 
development would not have an unduly detrimental impact on the safety and capacity 
of the surrounding highway network.  
 
Amenity 
 

10.67. Strategic policy SP10 of the CS and policy DM24 of the MDD seek to protect the 
amenity of residents of the borough.  
 
Overlooking and loss of privacy: 

10.68. No new windows are proposed which would affect the existing levels of indivisibility 
between the site and the surrounding residential properties.  
 

10.69. There would be a new outdoor area for the use of students to the rear of unit 26 
which would be located adjacent to the boundary with the rear gardens of the 
residential properties along Alpha Grove. In order to limit overlooking there would be 
a boarded boundary fence of 1.8 metres in height painted to match the existing 
boundary treatment along the northern site boundary. The fence would sit on top of 
an existing 600mm brick wall. At this point there is a change in gradient which means 
the neighbour gardens along Alpha Grove are 1.2 metres lower. This would mean 

Page 47



 32 

that the proposal would not lead to unduly detrimental impacts with regard to 
overlooking into these gardens.  
 
Noise, Vibration and Fumes:  

10.70. With regard to noise impacts, bringing the vacant units back into use would result in 
increased noise from the new users. The hours of operation of the school would be 
from 07:00 – 23:00. It is noted that there is an intention to allow community groups to 
use the school facilities for meetings after school hours which is why the hours of 
operation would be until 23:00. It is not considered that these hours of operation are 
unreasonable given the urban location. 
 

10.71. The details of how the outdoor seating area at the rear of unit 28 would be managed 
are detailed within the School Management Plan. This area is overlooked by training 
rooms and would be supervised at all times. Furthermore, the use of this space 
would be during school hours only (10:00 – 16:00, Mon-Fri), during which some noise 
is to be expected.  
 

10.72. With regard to noise during construction this is managed by environmental health 
legislation. The hours of construction would be 8am – 6pm Monday to Friday, 8am – 
1pm on Saturdays with no works allowed on Sundays and Bank Holidays.  
 

10.73. The proposed school would have a kitchen and a cafe which would serve hot and 
cold food and would require the installation of plant and flue. The applicant has 
submitted a noise report which has been reviewed by the Environmental Health 
Noise Officer who is satisfied with the details submitted and has requested no further 
details.   

 
Conclusion: 

10.74. Given, there are no new extensions there would be no impact with regard to daylight 
and sunlight. To conclude, it is not considered that the proposed development would 
have an adverse impact on the amenity of surrounding residents which accords with 
policy.  
 
Design and layout 
 

10.75. Strategic policy SP10 of the CS and policies DM23 and DM24 of the MDD, seek to 
ensure that buildings and neighbourhoods promote good design principles to create 
buildings, spaces and places that are high-quality, sustainable, accessible, attractive, 
durable and well-integrated with their surrounds. 

 
10.76. The existing units are two storeys in height and only minor external works are 

proposed. This includes improving entrances to ensure they are accessible. 
 

10.77. Two outdoor spaces are proposed. The first space would be associated with the 
ancillary nursery use within unit 30. The play area would have an all-weather play 
surface and it would be bounded by a 1.8 metre high fence.  
 

10.78. The second outdoor space would be provided at the rear of unit 26 and would 
provide outdoor seating for students during break times. This space would be 
bounded by a 1.8 metre boarded fence on top of an existing 600mm brickwork wall. 
As such there would be limited impact with regard to design and external appearance 
of the building as a result of this application.  
 

10.79. New plant is proposed on the roof of the existing café, which would be screened. The 
design and siting is considered acceptable given the industrial context of the units.  

Page 48



 33 

 
10.80. Other minor works include enlargement of doors, creation of level access, and 

removal of roller shutters and insertion of curtain walling. All of these works are 
relatively minor and in keeping with the host building.  
 

10.81. With regard to the proposed school, given it’s a vocational school; the former 
industrial units suit the needs of City Gateway. With regard to policy DM18 (d) part (ii) 
which requires schools to comply with the relevant standards, the Department of 
Education has previously confirmed that the independent schools need to comply 
with the Independent School Standards.  Ofsted would carry out an assessment to 
ensure the school meets the necessary standards.  
 
 
Energy and Sustainability  
 

10.82. Climate change policies are set out in Chapter 5 of the London Plan, strategic policy 
SP11 of the Core Strategy and policy DM29 of the MDD. These collectively require 
developments to make the fullest contribution to the mitigation and adaptation to 
climate change and to minimise carbon dioxide emissions.  
 

10.83. The London Plan sets out the Mayor of London’s energy hierarchy which is to: 
§ Use Less Energy (Be Lean); 
§ Supply Energy Efficiently (Be Clean); and 
§ Use Renewable Energy (Be Green). 

 
10.84. The London Plan 2011 includes the target to achieve a minimum 25% reduction in 

CO2 emissions above the Building Regulations 2010 through the cumulative steps of 
the Energy Hierarchy (Policy 5.2).  
 

10.85. Policy SO3 of the CS seeks to incorporate the principle of sustainable development, 
including limiting carbon emissions from development, delivering decentralised 
energy and renewable energy technologies and minimising the use of natural 
resources. Strategy policy SP11 of the CS requires all new developments to provide 
a 20% reduction of carbon dioxide emissions through on-site renewable energy 
generation.  
 

10.86. Policy DM29 of the MDD requires sustainable design assessment tools to be used to 
ensure the development has maximised use of climate change mitigation measures. 
At present the current interpretation of this policy is to require non-residential 
schemes to achieve a BREEAM Excellent rating.  
 

10.87. The submitted information for the scheme being considered outlines the intentions to 
reduce energy CO2 emissions through energy efficiency measures and system 
upgrade works.  
 

10.88. This is considered appropriate in this specific instance due to the application being a 
change of use application and not including any extensions or new build works.     
 

10.89. The energy strategy notes that the upgrades will deliver CO2 savings of 19% 
compared to Building Regulation L2B requirements as set out in document L2B. This 
document forms part of the approved Building Regulations documents which set out 
the requirements for compliance. Document L2B relates to conservation of fuel and 
power in existing buildings other than dwellings.  
 

Page 49



 34 

10.90. The Borough Energy Officer has recommend that if planning permission were to be 
granted a condition should be attached for the applicant to submit full details of the 
proposed energy efficiency and system upgrade works to deliver a minimum 19% 
reduction in CO2 emissions. The appropriate energy modelling output sheets would 
be required to demonstrate CO2 savings achievable. This condition would be 
attached as requested.  
 

10.91. In conclusion, given this is a change of use of an existing industrial building the 
energy and sustainability measures are considered acceptable and subject to 
conditions the proposal accords with the relevant energy policies.  
 

 Planning Contributions and Community Infrastructure Levy 
 
10.92. Regulation 122 of CIL Regulations 2010 brings into law policy tests for planning 

obligations which can only constitute a reason for granting planning permission 
where they meet the following tests: 

 
§ Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
§ Directly related to the development; and  
§ Are fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

 
10.93. This is further supported by policy SP13 of the CS which seek to negotiate planning 

obligations through their deliverance in kind or through financial contributions to 
mitigate the impacts of a development.   
 

10.94. The general purpose of S106 contributions is to ensure that development is 
appropriately mitigated in terms of impacts on existing social infrastructure such as 
health, community facilities and open space and that appropriate infrastructure to 
facilitate the development.  
 

10.95. The Council’s Supplementary Planning Document on Planning Obligations was 
adopted in January 2012, and sets out the criteria for assessing the need for financial 
contributions. The proposal is for an educational use and as such does not trigger the 
need for financial contributions.  
 

10.96. The proposed development is not liable for CIL.  
 

 
 Human Rights 
 

10.97. Planning decisions can have Human Rights Act 1998 implications and in terms of 
relevant provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998, the following are particularly 
highlighted to Members:-  
 

10.98. Section 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998 prohibits authorities (including the Council 
as local planning authority) from acting in a way which is incompatible with the 
European Convention on Human Rights. "Convention" here means the European 
Convention on Human Rights, certain parts of which were incorporated into English 
law under the Human Rights Act 1998. Various Convention rights are likely to be 
relevant, including:- 

§ Entitlement to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an 
independent and impartial tribunal established by law in the determination of 
a person's civil and political rights (Convention Article 6). This includes 
property rights and can include opportunities to be heard in the consultation 
process; 

Page 50



 35 

§ Rights to respect for private and family life and home. Such rights may be 
restricted if the infringement is legitimate and fair and proportionate in the 
public interest (Convention Article 8); and 

§ Peaceful enjoyment of possessions (including property). This does not impair 
the right to enforce such laws as the State deems necessary to control the 
use of property in accordance with the general interest (First Protocol, Article 
1). The European Court has recognised that "regard must be had to the fair 
balance that has to be struck between the competing interests of the 
individual and of the community as a whole". 

 
10.99. This report has outlined the consultation that has been undertaken on the planning 

application and the opportunities for people to make representations to the Council 
as local planning authority. 
 

10.100. Members need to satisfy themselves that the measures which are proposed 
to be taken to minimise, inter alia, the adverse effects of increased traffic generation 
on the highway and any noise associated with the use are acceptable and that any 
potential interference with Article 8 rights would be legitimate and justified. 
 

10.101. Both public and private interests are to be taken into account in the exercise 
of the Council's planning authority's powers and duties. Any interference with a 
Convention right must be necessary and proportionate. 

 
10.102. Members must, therefore, carefully consider the balance to be struck between 

individual rights and the wider public interest. 
 
10.103. As set out above, it is necessary, having regard to the Human Rights Act 

1998, to take into account any interference with private property rights protected by 
the European Convention on Human Rights and ensure that the interference is 
proportionate and in the public interest. 

 
10.104. In this context, the balance to be struck between individual rights and the 

wider public interest has been carefully considered.  Officers consider that any 
interference with Convention rights is justified. Officers have also taken into account 
the mitigation measures governed by planning conditions to be entered into. 
 
Equalities 
 

10.105. The Equality Act 2010 provides that in exercising its functions (which includes 
the functions exercised by the Council as Local Planning Authority), that the Council 
as a public authority shall amongst other duties have due regard to the need to- 

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited under the Act; 
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
 

10.106. The protected characteristics set out in the Equality Act are: age, disability, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and 
sexual orientation. The Equality Act acknowledges that compliance with the duties 
set out may involve treating some persons more favourably than others, but that this 
does not permit conduct that would otherwise be prohibited under the Act. 
 

Page 51



 36 

10.107. The proposal is for a non-denominational mixed sex secondary school which 
will improve the choice of schools and number of secondary school places within the 
borough, as such it is considered that any impact in terms of fostering relations and 
advancing equality with regard to sex, race, religion and belief will be positive.  
 

10.108. The proposed works associated with the change of use include creating 
accessible entrances to the buildings which would make the buildings more 
accessible at ground floor level which would improve access for persons with a 
disability. However, it is noted that persons with a disability requiring use of a 
wheelchair would only be able to access the ground floor level of the school. 
However, given that they can receive a full teaching experience or visitors can 
access all the key activities it is considered that this would not result in inequality.  
 

10.109. With regard to age, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, and 
sexual orientation there are no identified equality considerations.   
 

11. CONCLUSION 
 

11.1. All other relevant policies and considerations have been taken into account.  
Planning permission should be supported for the reasons set out in 
RECOMMENDATION section of this report. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 

Page 52



 37 

APPENDIX 2  

Page 53



 38 

 

Committee: 
Development  

Date:  
12 September 
2013 
 

Classification:  
Unrestricted 

Agenda Item Number: 
 

 

Report of:  
Director of Development and 
Renewal 
 
Case Officer: 
Mary O’Shaughnessy 

Title: Applications for Planning Permission  
 
Ref No:  PA/13/01647 (Variation of Condition) 
    
Ward: Millwall (February 2002 onwards) 

 
 
12.  APPLICATION DETAILS 
 
   
 Location: Units 24, 26, 28, 30 & 32, Mastmaker Road, London, 

E14 9UB  
 

 Existing Use: Light industrial (B Class Uses) 
 

 Proposal: Variation to condition 5 (student numbers) and 
condition 6 (hours of operation) of planning permission 
dated 10 July 2013, reference PA/13/00116 for the 
"Change of use of existing light industrial units (Use 
Class B1) (numbers 24, 26, 28, 30 and 32) to a 
secondary school (Use Class D1) offering vocational 
courses for 14-19 year olds." 
 

1. Variation of Condition 5 (Student Numbers) to 
limit the maximum number of students on site 
to 490. 

 
2. Variation of Condition 6 (Hours of Operation) 

staggering the arrival time of staff and students 
as follows: 

• Teachers and staff - 07:00 - 23:00 

• 14 - 16 year old students - 09:30 - 15:00 

• 16 - 19 year old students - 10:00 - 15:30 

• Social enterprise units - 10:00 - 18:00 
 
 

 Drawing and documents: 
 

Drawings: 
099 REV0 (Location Plan) 
Documents: 

• Planning and Impact Statement, prepared by 
TP Bennett, dated July 2013.  

• City Gateway 14-19 Provision School 
Management Plan, prepared by City Gateway, 
dated 7 July 2013.  

• Transport Assessment, Document Reference: 
JNY7860-01A prepared by RPS, dated 16 
January 2013. 

Page 54



 39 

• Framework School Travel Plan, Document 
Reference: JNY7860-02A, prepared by RPS, 
dated 16 January 2013. 

  
 Applicant: City Gateway  

 
 Ownership: City Gateway  

 
 Historic Building: None 

 
 Conservation Area: None 

 
 
13. Executive Summary 

 
13.1. Officers have considered the particular circumstances of this application against the 

Council’s approved planning policies contained in the London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets adopted Core Strategy (2010),  Managing Development Document (2013) 
as amended, the London Plan (2011) and the National Planning Policy Framework 
2012, and have found that: 
 

13.2. The introduction of staggered arrivals and departures for students controlled by 
condition 6 ensures that the development would not have an unduly detrimental 
effect on the capacity of the public transport network within the vicinity of the site. 
Furthermore, in light of this, condition 5 can also be varied to allow a maximum of 
490 students on site at any one time.  

 
 
14. RECOMMENDATION 

 
14.1. That the Committee resolve to GRANT the variation of the conditions as set out in 

the description of development.  
 

14.2. That the Corporate Director Development & Renewal is delegated authority to 
recommend the following conditions and informatives in relation to the following 
matters: 
 

14.3. Conditions 
 

Compliance: 
§ Time Limit for implementation 3 years from 10 July 2013 (date of original 

consent). 
§ Compliance with plans 
§ Compliance with Construction Management Plan  
§ Compliance with School Management Plan 
§ Maximum number of Students 490 
§ Compliance with hours of operation  

 
Prior to Commencement 

§ Contamination  
 
Prior to Occupation: 

§ Travel Plan including details of management of short stay car parking spaces.  
§ Delivery and Servicing Plan 

Page 55



 40 

§ Flood Evacuation Plan 
§ Energy  
§ Post completion testing to demonstrate best endeavours to comply with Building 

Bulleting 98 with regard to noise.  
 

14.4. Informatives 

• Consultation with School Travel Plan Officer 
 
 

15. PROPOSAL AND LOCATION DETAILS 
 

Proposal and Background 
 

15.1. Planning permission for the change of use of the existing industrial units to a 
secondary school was granted on the 10th of July 2013. At the Development 
Committee on the 15 May 2013 members resolved to grant planning permission 
subject to a number of conditions. The applicant is now seeking to vary two of these 
conditions. 
 

15.2. Given, the applicant is seeking to vary two conditions which were specifically subject 
to the Members resolution to grant, this matter is being reported back to the 
Development Committee for decision.  
 

15.3. The proposal is for the variation of condition 5 which currently restricts the maximum 
number of students on site at any one time to 150 and restricts the maximum number 
of students enrolled to 280. The varied condition would allow a total of 490 students 
to be on site at any one time and would not restrict the number of students enrolled.  

 
15.4. The proposals also seeks the variation of condition 6 which currently restricts the 

hours of operation of the school as follows: 

• Teachers and Staff – 07:00 – 23:00 

• Students – 09:00 – 23:00 

• Social Enterprise Units – 10:00 – 18:00. 
 
15.5. The varied condition would have staggered arrivals and departures and would restrict 

the hours of operation as follows: 

•  Teachers and Staff – 07:00 – 23:00 (would remain as existing) 

• 14-16 year old students – 09:30 – 15:00 

• 16-19 year old students – 10:00 – 15:30 

• Social Enterprise Units – 10:00 – 18:00 (would remain as existing). 
 

15.6. The School would be managed and run by City Gateway who are a charity based in 
Tower Hamlets who run women’s projects, youth training, youth centres and a social 
enterprise hub. Their aim is to assist disadvantaged local communities of Tower 
Hamlets that haven’t benefited from the area’s wider economic development. The 
proposed education centre would assist young people who haven’t achieved in 
mainstream education to enjoy learning, and gain vocational qualifications with the 
aim to move onto employment or further education.  
 

15.7. City Gateway gained ‘Free School’ status in early 2012 from the Department for 
Education (DfE). They opened a Free School in September 2012 and currently are 
based at Ensign Court, Ensign Street and Limehouse Youth Centre, Limehouse 
Causeway. They currently have a capacity for 266 places and provide vocational 

Page 56



 41 

training for 14 – 19 year olds.  The intention is to move the Free School to the site 
and begin operations in early September.  
 
Site and Surroundings 

15.8. Clipper House and Mastmaker Quay, is a light industrial complex located on the 
western side of Mastmaker Road. There are currently eight units of different sizes 
within the complex. The units are two storeys in height and are planned around an 
open courtyard with car parking spaces around the site. Two of the units are in active 
commercial use by small businesses: Unit 34 is occupied by Party Ingredients who 
are Private Caterers and WF Senate are Electrical Supplies Distributers who occupy 
unit 22. 
 

15.9. There is currently a boxing gym (with a ring) and church operating at Unit 28. 
However, there is no evidence on the statutory planning register that planning 
permission was ever granted for these uses. It would appear that the use of the unit 
as a boxing gym and church is unauthorised and this is further discussed within the 
planning history section of this report.  
 

15.10. The site is neither listed nor located within a conservation area. There are no 
designated heritage assets within the immediate vicinity of the site.  
 

15.11. The site forms part of the Millennium Quarter site allocation within the Managing 
Development Document (MDD) which sets out the vision for the development of the 
area.  
 

15.12. Clipper House and Mastmaker Court, is one of the last remaining light industrial uses 
within the site allocation boundary. This marks the transition that has occurred from a 
mainly industrial area to a more residential area. Directly to the north of the site is 
Phoenix Heights which is a residential development with commercial uses at ground 
floor level. To the east of the site is the old Guardian Press Office site. All of the 
buildings have been demolished and the site is currently surrounded by a hoarding. 
The site is subject to pre-application discussions. To the south of the site is 
Gainsborough House which is a residential development. To the west of the site is a 
row of terraced houses which front Alpha Road. Numbers 9 – 41 Alpha Road have 
rear gardens which face onto the application site.  
 
Relevant Planning History  
 

15.13. PA/13/00116 – The LPA granted planning permission on the 10 July 2013 for the 
“Change of use of existing light industrial units (Use Class B1) (numbers 24, 26, 28, 
30 and 32) to a secondary school (Use Class D1) offering vocational courses for 14-
19 year olds.” 
 

15.14. PA/97/00651 – The LPA granted planning permission on the 14 August 1997 for Unit 
26 for the “Change of use from B1/B8 to car servicing and valeting.” 
 

15.15. ENF/13/00077 – The planning enforcement team are investigating the unauthorised 
use of unit 28 as a boxing gym (with a ring) and church.  
 
 

16. POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 

16.1. For details of the status of relevant policies see the front sheet for “Planning 
Applications for Determination” agenda items.  

 

Page 57



 42 

16.2. The following policies are relevant to the application: 
 
 

16.3. Government Planning Policy Guidance/Statements  
 National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) (NPPF) 

Policy Statement – planning for schools development (August 2011) 
 

16.4. Spatial Development Strategy for Greater London - London Plan 2011 (LP) 
3.18 Educational Facilities 
6.1 Strategic approach 
6.3 Assessing effects of development on transport capacity 
6.7 Better streets and surface transport 
6.9 Cycling 
6.10 Walking 
6.12 Road network capacity 
6.13 Parking 
 

16.5. Tower Hamlets Core Strategy (adopted September 2010) (CS) 
SP08 Making connected Places 
SP09 Creating Attractive and Safe Streets and Spaces 
SP10 Creating Distinct and Durable Places 
 

16.6. Managing Development Document (adopted April 2013) (MDD)  
DM20 Supporting a Sustainable transport network 
DM22 Parking 
DM23 Streets and the public realm 
DM24 Place sensitive design 
DM25 Amenity 

 
16.7. Tower Hamlets Community Plan 
 The following Community Plan objectives relate to the application: 

• A Great Place to Live 

• A Prosperous Community 

• A Safe and Supportive Community 

• A Healthy Community 
 
 
17. CONSULTATION RESPONSE 

 
17.1. The views of the Directorate of Development & Renewal are expressed in the 

MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS section below. 
 

17.2. The following were consulted regarding the application: 
 
Transport for London (TfL) 
 

17.3. Extensive discussion between the council planning officer, school operator and TfL 
took place post the granting of the original consent concerning minimising impact to 
the transport network while enabling the school to function and operate efficiently. 
 

17.4. The revised proposal (varying condition 6 – hours of operation) suggested that the 
school opening hours would be amended as follow, as stated in the application form: 
Teacher & Staff: 0700-2300hrs, Pre 16 pupils: 0930-1500hrs, 16-19 yrs old: 1000-
1530hrs, and social enterprise: 1000-1800hrs. 

Page 58



 43 

 
17.5. This is considered acceptable by TfL as students will be generally arriving outside the 

AM peaks and departing in a staggered manner during the PM; this helps relieve 
capacity impact to the bus network. 

 
17.6. Having regarded the proposed change of operational hour, TfL considers that the 

suggested revised cap on maximum number of students (varying condition 5 – 
student number) by the applicant would be acceptable.  

 
17.7. To ensure impact to the public transport network would be kept to a minimum; TfL 

considers that the school management plan be strictly enforced and be secured by 
condition; the travel plan would also need to be revised to reflect the new proposed 
arrangement and enrolled into the STAR accreditation scheme. 
 

17.8. TfL request the following informative be attached:  “TfL should be consulted on any 
further changes to the operational hour, number of students on site and changes to 
the school management plan in future; and may therefore seek an contribution 
toward public transport service enhancement if deemed necessary in light of change 
in circumstances in future.” 
 

17.9. Subject to the above are being met, TfL has no objection to the proposal. 
 
17.10. [Officer Comment: Conditions and informatives would be attached to any 

permission granted as requested.] 
 

LBTH Transportation and Highways 
 

17.11. These conditions were attached to the parent application in response to TfL concerns 
over the development’s impact on local bus capacity. TfL have responded to the 
proposed variation to conditions 5 and 6 and are satisfied they can be discharged 
subject to the school management plan being strictly enforced and secured by 
condition and a revised travel plan that reflects the new proposed arrangements. The 
Borough Highway Officer support TfL’s views and has no further comments.   
 

17.12. [Officer Comment: With regard to who requested the conditions, it is noted that in 
the first instance a condition restricting the maximum number of students on site was 
requested by TfL. At the committee meeting Members amended this condition to 
lower the maximum number of students allowed on site. Should planning permission 
be attached the conditions as requested would be attached. ] 
 

 
18. LOCAL REPRESENTATION 

 
18.1. A total of 218 neighbouring properties within the area shown on the map appended to 

this report were notified about the application and invited to comment. The 
application has also been publicised on site and in the local press.  No 
representations have been received from neighbours and local groups in response to 
notification and publicity of the application. 
 

 
19. MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
 
19.1. Section 73 of the Planning Act allows the variation or removal of a condition imposed 

on a planning permission. This application seeks to vary condition 5 and 6 of the 
consented permission.  

Page 59



 44 

 

19.2. The development which this application under s.73 seeks to amend has been 
judged acceptable in principle when it was considered at the 15 May 2013 
Development Committee where Members resolved to grant subject to conditions. 
Government advice states that when assessing these types of applications, that 
local planning authorities should, in making their decisions, focus their attention 
on national or local policies or other material considerations which may have 
changed significantly since the original grant of permission, as well as the 
changes sought. 
 

19.3. Since the grant of planning permission in July 2013 there have been no changes in 
national or local policies. As such, this report focuses on the changes sought. 
However, at appendix 1 there is a copy of the planning report and update report 
presented to members on the 15 May 2013 to inform members.  

 
19.4. The main planning issues raised by the application that the committee must consider 

are: 
 

§ Highways 
§ Amenity 
 
Highways  

 
Policy Context: 

19.5. Policy SP07 of the CS states that secondary schools should be located in highly 
accessible locations and integrated into secondary and main movement routes. Also 
relevant is policy SP09 of the CS and DM20 of the MDD which seek to ensure that 
new development has no adverse impacts upon the safety and capacity of the road 
network by ensuring new development is appropriately located depending on its type 
and scale with developments generating a higher number of trips to be located in 
town centres and/or other areas well served by public transport.  
 

19.6. The site is accessible by public transport with bus stops located a short walk away on 
Marsh Wall. The bus stops on Marsh Wall are approximately a two to three minute 
walk from the proposed school site (approximately 190 metres). There is also a bus 
stop at Westferry Road (Byng Street stop) to the west of the site which is 
approximately 400 metres from the site (four to five minute walk). The area has a 
Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 3 which indicates ‘moderate’ level of 
accessibility.   
 
Local Area and Site: 

19.7. There are a total of five bus routes operating within 400 metres of the site. The 
service from Stratford to Asda (Crossharbour) stops at the Marsh Wall bus stops. 
The D3 (London Chest Hospital to Asda (Crossharbour), D7 (Poplar to Mile End 
Station), 135 (Moorefield’s Eye Hospital to Asda (Crossharbour)),   and N550 
(Trafalgar Square to Canning Town Station) services stop at Westferry Road (Byng 
Street Stop).These services provide links to Canary Wharf, Poplar, Bow, Stratford, 
Shoreditch, Liverpool Street and Limehouse.  
 

19.8. South Quay DLR station is located within a four to five minute walk of the proposed 
school site (approximately 380 metres). Finally the centre of Canary Wharf, including 
the Jubilee Line station is approximately a six to seven minute walk from the 
proposed school site (circa 550 metres).   
 

Page 60



 45 

19.9. Mastmaker Road routes traffic north to south. It is a single carriageway road and is 
street lit along its length with footways on either side of the carriageway up to four 
metres in width. Mastmaker Road provides access to various business units and 
residential units and is subject to a 30 mile per hour speed restriction.  

 
19.10. The site has existing vehicular access from Mastmaker Road and the main 

pedestrian entrance to the school would be from Mastmaker Road.   
 
Assessment: 

19.11. The application is for the variation of condition 6 (hours of operation) to allow a 
staggered arrival and departure time for students to alleviate the impact of the 
development on the public transport network specifically the bus network. The 
applicant also seeks to vary condition 5 (number of students) to restrict the number of 
student on site at any one time to 490. 
 

19.12. During the course of the previous application, TfL had raised concerns about the 
impact of the number of students would have on the transport network. As a result 
they suggested a condition restricting the maximum number of students on site at 
any one time to 302 and a condition restricting students from arriving at the school 
before nine.  
 

19.13. At the Development Committee meeting on the 12 May 2013, members resolved to 
grant planning permission subject to a condition restricting the maximum number of 
pupils enrolled to 280 and the maximum number of students on site at one time to 
150. This was to address concerns regarding impacts of the school on the local 
transport network. The planning permission was issued with this condition attached.  
 

19.14. It is noted that concerns were also raised in relation to anti-social behaviour however 
these related to the hours of operation of the social enterprise units and this was 
resolved by restricting the hours of operation of these units to between 10:00 – 
18:00. This application does not proposed any change to this part of the condition.   
 

19.15. The applicant has advised that condition 5 which restricted the number of students 
prevents the school from opening. They currently have space for 280 students at 
their current sites and the purpose of the previous application was to seek permission 
for a change of use to allow the school to relocate to one larger premise’s where they 
could have capacity for up to 490 students.  
 

19.16. In order to resolve this matter the applicant met with TfL and Council Planning 
Officers. At this meeting it was established that the key issue was the impact of 
students arrivals and departures on the public transport network specifically buses 
which are at capacity in the area.  
 

19.17. As a result the applicant is seeking to vary condition 6 (hours of operation) to stager 
pupil’s arrival and departure times as follows: 14-16 year old students – 09:30 – 
15:00 and 16-19 year old students – 10:00 – 15:30. This would mean that students 
would not be using public transport during the am and pm peaks. TfL support the 
amended condition.  
 

19.18. Moving to condition 5, given students would be travelling outside of the am and pm 
peak, the maximum number of students on site can be raised to 490. TfL support the 
amended condition.  
 

19.19. It is noted that a School Travel Plan was secured by condition for the previous 
development via condition. The purpose of a School Travel Plan is to encourage 

Page 61



 46 

sustainable means of transport for staff, students and visitors. This condition would 
be attached again in line with TfL comments.  
 

19.20. The applicant has also submitted an updated School Management Plan to reflect the 
staggered arrival and start time approach. The revised School Management Plan 
would be approved as part of this application and compliance with the School 
Management Plan would also be secured via condition in line with the consented 
scheme.  
 

19.21. In conclusion, by staggering the arrival and departure time of students the pressure 
on the local bus service during the am and pm peak is alleviated. In turn, this means 
that the number of students on site at any one time can be raised to 490. It is 
considered that the variation of condition 5 and 6 should be allowed given there 
would not be an unduly detrimental impact on the safety and capacity of the 
surrounding highway network and public transport network.   

 
Amenity 
 

19.22. Strategic policy SP10 of the CS and policy DM24 of the MDD seek to protect the 
amenity of residents of the borough. With regard to the variation of condition 6 (hours 
of operation) the varied hours would not have an unduly detrimental impact on the 
amenity of adjacent residents given they are more restrictive than the consented 
hours.  
 
Conditions 

 
19.23. In line with paragraph 3.3 of this report it is proposed to retain the conditions (aside 

from those varied by this application) which were part of the original decision notice.  
 

19.24. It is noted that the applicant is seeking to discharge condition 10 (flood evacuation 
plan) attached to the parent permission. This application was received on the 8 
August 2013 and is currently being assessed by officers. Should this condition be 
discharged ahead of the decision for this application being issued it would be 
possible to approve the documents and revert condition 10 to a compliance 
condition. This would mean the applicant would not need to discharge the details 
associated with condition 10 again.  

  
 Human Rights 
 

19.25. Planning decisions can have Human Rights Act 1998 implications and in terms of 
relevant provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998, the following are particularly 
highlighted to Members:-  
 

19.26. Section 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998 prohibits authorities (including the Council 
as local planning authority) from acting in a way which is incompatible with the 
European Convention on Human Rights. "Convention" here means the European 
Convention on Human Rights, certain parts of which were incorporated into English 
law under the Human Rights Act 1998. Various Convention rights are likely to be 
relevant, including:- 

§ Entitlement to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an 
independent and impartial tribunal established by law in the determination of 
a person's civil and political rights (Convention Article 6). This includes 
property rights and can include opportunities to be heard in the consultation 
process; 

Page 62



 47 

§ Rights to respect for private and family life and home. Such rights may be 
restricted if the infringement is legitimate and fair and proportionate in the 
public interest (Convention Article 8); and 

§ Peaceful enjoyment of possessions (including property). This does not impair 
the right to enforce such laws as the State deems necessary to control the 
use of property in accordance with the general interest (First Protocol, Article 
1). The European Court has recognised that "regard must be had to the fair 
balance that has to be struck between the competing interests of the 
individual and of the community as a whole". 

 
19.27. This report has outlined the consultation that has been undertaken on the planning 

application and the opportunities for people to make representations to the Council 
as local planning authority. 
 

19.28. Members need to satisfy themselves that the measures which are proposed to be 
taken to minimise, inter alia, the adverse effects of increased traffic generation on the 
highway and any noise associated with the use are acceptable and that any potential 
interference with Article 8 rights would be legitimate and justified. 
 

19.29. Both public and private interests are to be taken into account in the exercise of the 
Council's planning authority's powers and duties. Any interference with a Convention 
right must be necessary and proportionate. 

 
19.30. Members must, therefore, carefully consider the balance to be struck between 

individual rights and the wider public interest. 
 
19.31. As set out above, it is necessary, having regard to the Human Rights Act 1998, to 

take into account any interference with private property rights protected by the 
European Convention on Human Rights and ensure that the interference is 
proportionate and in the public interest. 

 
19.32. In this context, the balance to be struck between individual rights and the wider public 

interest has been carefully considered.  Officers consider that any interference with 
Convention rights is justified. Officers have also taken into account the mitigation 
measures governed by planning conditions to be entered into. 
 
Equalities 
 

19.33. The Equality Act 2010 provides that in exercising its functions (which includes the 
functions exercised by the Council as Local Planning Authority), that the Council as a 
public authority shall amongst other duties have due regard to the need to- 

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited under the Act; 
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
 

19.34. The protected characteristics set out in the Equality Act are: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual 
orientation. The Equality Act acknowledges that compliance with the duties set out 
may involve treating some persons more favourably than others, but that this does 
not permit conduct that would otherwise be prohibited under the Act. 
 

Page 63



 48 

19.35. The proposal is for a non-denominational mixed sex secondary school which will 
improve the choice of schools and number of secondary school places within the 
borough, as such it is considered that any impact in terms of fostering relations and 
advancing equality with regard to sex, race, religion and belief will be positive.  
 

19.36. The proposed works associated with the change of use include creating accessible 
entrances to the buildings which would make the buildings more accessible at ground 
floor level which would improve access for persons with a disability. However, it is 
noted that persons with a disability requiring use of a wheelchair would only be able 
to access the ground floor level of the school. However, given that they can receive a 
full teaching experience or visitors can access all the key activities it is considered 
that this would not result in inequality.  
 

19.37. With regard to age, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, and sexual 
orientation there are no identified equality considerations.   

 
20. CONCLUSION 

 
20.1. All other relevant policies and considerations have been taken into account.  The 

variation of condition application should be supported for the reasons set out in 
RECOMMENDATION section of this report. 

 
 
  
 
 

  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 

Page 64



P
age 65



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 66



Planning Application Site Map
PA/13/02773 

:

: :

:::: ::::::::

:

:

::::::::::::::: :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: :: ::: ::::

:

::

:::::

:::: ::: :

::::::: :

:::::: ::

::

:

:

:
::

: :

:

:

:

:

::
::
::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::

::::::::::::

::::

:
:

::

::::

:

:

:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::

:

: : : : : :: : : : : :

:::
::

::
::::

::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::

:

:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::

:

:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: :::::::::::::::::

::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::

:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::

:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::

::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::

:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::
:
::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::

:

::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: : ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::

::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::

:

:
:

:

:

:

:::

::

:

:

:

:::

::

:

:::::

:

:

:

:

:

:
:
:

:

:

::::::::::

:

:

:

:

:::::

:::::::::::::::::

::::::
:
:
:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::

::::::
::

:

::::

:::::::

:
:

:
::::::: ::

:

:

:

:
:

:::

::::::

:
::

: :
::

:
:

:
:

:::
:

:
:

:
::::

:

:

:

::

:

:::

:::::
:::::
:::
:::

:

:::::
:

:

:

:::

:

1 to 6

RaleighHouse

2

1 to 6

Blake
House

El Sub Sta

4.7m

64

TCP

101

Viaduct

Ho
us

e

Sc
ott

1

12

63

Bank

El Sub
Sta

26

28

32

Dowlen Ct

Ho
us

e

Pa
rke

r
Ho

us
e

2.1m

69

2.1m

El Sub Sta

85

Steps
Lenanton

50

56

58

Ensign House

54

46

3

5856
80

60

Community

78

1.7m

3.0m

62
14

34
36

Centre

34

1.5m

1 t
o 6

1 t
o 6

C1

57
Mizen

1 to 6

Court
53

51
35

23
43

11
13

Forecastle
Court

1 to 69
7 13

Bosun Close

1

2

6
5

Moore HouseLowry House

Turner

Gainsborough House

House

La
yb

ou
rn

e
Ho

us
e

Playground

99a
99b

Hotel

Apartments East

97

Square
South Quay

99
1 to 3

31
39

140

Pheonix
Heights West

4c

154

100 to
120

6 t
o 1

6

80 to 94 142
148 150

122 to

El
Sub
Sta Pheonix

Heights East

Community
Centre

14698

15

1

25

Indescon
Square

4a

4

20

13

11

35

2

1

20

Discovery Dock

2

Apartments West

Posts

Posts

Church

50
44

42

13
0

11
0

48

14
2

12
4

10
4

13
2

92 11
2

Marsh Wall

Mi
llh

arb
ou

r

Alpha Grove

Byng Street

Admirals Way

Lanterns Way

Ma
stm

ak
er

 R
oa

d

Ailsa Walk

Lightermans Road

Cassilis Road

Indescon Square

Manilla Street

Planning Application
Site Boundary
Consultation Area

Locally Listed Buildings

Statutory Listed Buildings

: Land Parcel Address

OSLine

This Site Map displays the Planning Application Site Boundary and the neighbouring Occupiers / Owners who were 
consulted as part of the Planning Application process.  
© Crown copyright and database rights 2014 Ordnance Survey, London Borough of Tower Hamlets 100019288

0 20 m

I
1:1,800Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



 

Committee: 
Development  

Date: 
12

th
 March 2014  

Classification:  
Unrestricted 

Agenda Item Number: 
 

 

Report of:  
Director of Development and 
Renewal 
 
Case Officer: 
Adrian Walker 

Title: Town Planning Application 
 

Ref No: PA/13/02318 
 
Ward: Whitechapel 

 
 
1. APPLICATION DETAILS 
 
   
 Location: 93 New Road, London, E1 1HH 
 Existing Use: Retail (Use Class A1) 
 Proposal: Proposed change of use from a retail shop A1 into a 

restaurant A3. 
 Drawing Nos/Documents: KOM/177-32, KOM/177-31Location Plan, Design and 

Access Statement, Impact Statement 
 Applicant: Mr T. Parvez 
 Ownership: Mr T. Parvez 
 Historic Building: No 
 Conservation Area: Myrdle Street 

 
2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
  
2.1 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
 
2.4 

Given the mixed use nature of the area and the proximity of the unit to other shops 
and the Whitechapel District Centre it is considered that the loss of the A1 retail unit 
is acceptable, as there is a more than adequate provision of local shops in the area. 
 
The proposed restaurant would only cater for 24 customers at one time and therefore 
it is considered that this number of patrons is not going to have a significant impact 
on the noise and disturbance of people coming and going to the detriment of the 
local residents.  
 
The proposed restaurant would not result in an over-concentration of this type of use 
and is in accordance with objectives of Core Strategy policy SP01, which seeks to 
promote a vibrant mix of uses in the designated Activity Areas.   
 
The proposed flue is discretely placed at the rear of the premises and will not be 
readily visible from the streetscene and would not harm to the character and 
appearance of the Myrdle Street Conservation Area. 

 
3. RECOMMENDATION 
  
3.1 That the Committee resolve to GRANT planning permission 
  
3.2 Conditions on Planning Permission 
  
 (1) Time Limit (Three Years) 
 (2) Development to be built in accordance with approved plans 
 (4) Hours of operation limited to 8am-11pm Monday to Sunday 

(5) Plant noise to be 10dB(A) below lowest background noise 
(6) Provision and retention of bin store 

Page 73

Agenda Item 6.2



 
4. PROPOSAL AND LOCATION DETAILS 
  
 Proposal 
  
4.1 
 
 

The proposal seeks to change the use of the existing shop (Use Class A1) at 93 New 
Road to a restaurant (Use Class A3).  

4.2 The main land use issues relate to  
 

1. The loss of the retail unit,  
2. The concentration of restaurants in the area, and  
3. The provision of new restaurant floorspace. 

  
 Site and Surroundings 
  
4.3 The application site comprises the ground floor and basement of a four-storey 

terraced building. 
 
The site is located on New Road. New Road has a mixed use character, with 
commercial uses predominant on the ground floor, with residential uses typically 
located above.  To the South the Road becomes more residential.  New Road is a 
relatively busy route linking Whitechapel High Street to Commercial Road.  On the 
opposite side of the road from the site there are the larger buildings associated with 
the Royal London Hospital.   
 
There are residential properties to the rear along Romford Road.  
 
The site is located within the City Fringe Activity Area (which is part of the Tower 
Hamlets Activity Area).  The site is outside the Town Centre boundary of the 
Whitechapel District Centre.  The boundary of this centre lies approximately 50m to 
the North, past Stepney Way/Fieldgate Street. 
 
The site is located within the boundary of the Whitechapel Vision SPD 
 
The site is located within the Myrdle Street Conservation Area. 
 
The site is not Listed. 

  
 Planning History 
  
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

93 New Road London E1 1HH 
 
PA/10/02692 Change of use of ground floor and basement from Use Class A1 retail 
to Use Class A3 restaurant, together with installation of kitchen extract duct and flue 
to the rear elevation of the building. Refused 08/08/2011 
 
Reasons: 

1. The proposed Use Class A3 restaurant would result in an over concentration 
of similar uses within the local area, and that the cumulative impact and levels 
of disturbance associated with these uses would have a detrimental impact 
on local residents. The proposal is therefore contrary to the requirements of 
Policies SP01(2c) of the adopted Core Strategy (2010), saved Policy S7 of 
the Unitary Development Plan (1998) and Policy RT5 of the Interim Planning 
Guidance (2007). These policies seek to prevent the over-concentration of 

Page 74



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

evening and night-time economy uses where they would have a detrimental 
impact on residential amenity. 
 

2. The proposed kitchen extract duct riser would neither preserve nor enhance 
the character and appearance of the Myrdle Street Conservation Area, which 
is contrary to the requirements of Policy SP10(2) of the Council's adopted 
Core Strategy (2010), saved Policy DEV27 of the Unitary Development Plan 
(1998), Policy CON2 of the Interim Planning Guidance (2007), Policy 7.8 of 
The London Plan, and government guidance set out in Planning Policy 
Statement 5: Planning for the Historic Environment (2010). These policies 
and government guidance seek to ensure that development proposals either 
preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the Borough's 
Conservation Areas. 

 
3. Insufficient information has been provided to demonstrate that the proposed 

kitchen extract system would adequately protect the amenity of neighbouring 
residents from undue odour nuisance. As such, the proposal is contrary to the 
requirements of Policy SP10(4) of the adopted Core Strategy (2010), saved 
Policies DEV2 and S7 of the Unitary Development Plan (1998) and Policy 
DEV1 of the Interim Planning Guidance (2007). These policies require 
development to protect, and where possible improve, the amenity of 
surrounding existing and future residents and building occupants, as well as 
protect the amenity of the surrounding public realm. 
 

4. Insufficient information has been provided to demonstrate that the proposed 
Use Class A3 restaurant includes adequate facilities for the storage and 
collection of waste and recyclables. The proposal is therefore contrary to the 
requirements of saved Policy DEV55 of the Unitary Development Plan (1998) 
and Policy DEV15 of the Interim Planning Guidance (2007). These policies 
require planning applications to be considered in light of the adequacy and 
ease of access to the development for waste collection and the adequacy of 
storage space for waste given the frequency of waste collections. 

  
4.5 PA/10/00957 Retention of use as a retail shop (Use Class A1) at ground floor and 

basement. Permitted 19/08/2010 
  
 
 
 
 
 
4.6 
 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
 
 
4.8 
 
 
 
 

Neighbouring Sites 
 
85 New Road 
 
PA/13/01607 Change of use at 85 New Road from shop (A1 use class) to restaurant 
(A3 use class) with rear extension to provide waiting area toilets (including one 
disabled) and seating for the existing restaurant at 87 New Road. Permitted 
11/10/2013 
 
PA/13/01566 Variation of Condition 3 of Planning Permission dated 06/02/2009 Ref: 
PA/08/02662 to extend the hours of operation from between 10.00 am to 10.00 pm to 
between 11.30 am to 11.30 pm on any day. Permitted 11/10/2013  
 
PA/13/00823 Change of use at 85 New Road from shop (A1 use class) to restaurant 
(A3 use class) with rear extension to provide waiting area, toilets (including one 
disabled) and seating for the existing restaurant at 87 New Road  (No new cooking 
and extraction facilities required now or in the future). -  Refused 11/06/2013 
 
Reason: 

Page 75



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.9 
 
 
 

The proposed restaurant would add to the proliferation this use along New Road.  
This will result in an over-concentration of this type of use and detract from the 
objectives of Core Strategy policy SP01, which seeks to promote a vibrant mix of 
uses in the designated Tower Hamlets Activity Area.  The over-concentration of 
restaurant uses in the area will lead to adverse impacts on residential occupiers of 
the area in terms of increased noise & disturbance from patrons coming and going to 
the restaurants.  The proposal is therefore contrary to the objectives of policies 
SP01(2c) of the adopted Core Strategy (2010) and policy DM1(4) of the adopted 
Managing Development (2013). 
 
83 New Road  
 
PA/12/00605 Change of use from (A1) retail to mixed use coffee shop and restaurant 
(A1/A3) with no primary hot food cooking facilities, no associated extract flue system 
and seating area limited to ground floor only; including retention of No.4 AC units and 
alterations to shop front including new access door. Refused 23/11/2012 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Reasons: 

1. The restaurant element of the proposed use will have an adverse impact on 
the amenity of residents of the area by virtue of increased noise and 
disturbance associated with patrons coming and going. The proposal is 
therefore contrary to the objectives of policy SP01(2c)of the adopted Core 
Strategy (2010), policy S7 of the adopted Unitary Development plan 1998 and 
policy DM25(e) of the Managing Development DPD (Submission Version May 
2012). 
 

2. The restaurant element of the proposed use will result in the proliferation of 
such uses outside of a designated Town Centre, which is contrary to the 
objectives of policy DM1(4) of the Managing Development Development Plan 
Document (Submission Version 2012), which seeks to direct such uses into 
designated centres. The proposal will lead to the over-concentration of such 
uses in the area and as such is contrary to the objectives of policies 
SP01(2c)of the adopted Core Strategy (2010), policy S7 of the adopted 
Unitary Development plan 1998 and policy DM1(4) of the Managing 
Development DPD (Submission Version May 2012). 

 
89-91 New Road 
 
PA/10/02327 Change of use of ground floor from retail shop (Use Class A1) to 
restaurant (Use Class A3) with extract system. Refused 04/01/2011 
 
Reasons: 

1. The proposed Class A3 restaurant would result in an over concentration of 
similar uses within the local area, and that the cumulative impact and levels of 
disturbance associated with these uses would have a detrimental impact on 
local residents.  The site is not located in a designated town centre.  The 
proposal is therefore contrary to the requirements of Policies SP01(2c), 
SP03(2b) and SP10 of the adopted Core Strategy (2010) and Policy RT5 of 
the Interim Planning Guidance (2007), which seek to prevent the over-
concentration of evening and night-time economy uses where they would 
have a detrimental impact on residential amenity. 
 

2. The proposed extraction flue would have a detrimental impact on the 
appearance of the rear elevation of the building, and would detract from the 

Page 76



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.11 

character and appearance of the Myrdle Street Conservation Area contrary to 
the requirements of Policy SP10(4) of the Core Strategy (2010), saved 
Policies DEV1 and DEV9 of the Unitary Development Plan (1998) and Policy 
DEV2 of the Interim Planning Guidance (2007). 

 
3. Insufficient information has been provided to adequately demonstrate that the 

proposed kitchen extract system would protect neighbouring residential 
amenity with regard to noise disturbance. As such, the proposal is contrary to 
the requirements of Policy SP03(2b) and Policy SP10(4) of the adopted Core 
Strategy (2010), saved Policies DEV2, DEV50 and S7 of the Unitary 
Development Plan (1998) and Policies DEV1 and DEV10 of the Interim 
Planning Guidance (2007). These policies require development proposals to 
protect the amenity of surrounding existing and future residents and building 
occupants, as well as protect the amenity of the surrounding public realm. 

 
83 New Road  
 
PA/10/01878 Change of use ground floor and basement from Class A1 retail / 
wholesale to Class A3 restaurant with ancillary hot food takeaway. Refused 
23/12/2010 
 
Reasons: 

1. The proposed Class A3 restaurant would result in an over concentration of 
similar uses within the local area, and that the cumulative impact and levels of 
disturbance associated with these uses would have a detrimental impact on 
local residents.  The site is not located in a designated town centre.  The 
proposal is therefore contrary to the requirements of Policies SP01(2c), 
SP03(2b) and SP10 of the adopted Core Strategy (2010) and Policy RT5 of 
the Interim Planning Guidance (2007), which seek to prevent the over-
concentration of evening and night-time economy uses where they would 
have a detrimental impact on residential amenity. 

 
2. Insufficient information has been provided for the Council to be able to 

determine whether the proposed duct riser and flue are acceptable in design 
terms, as required by Policy SP10(4) of the Core Strategy (2010), saved 
Policies DEV1 and DEV9 of the Unitary Development Plan (1998) and Policy 
DEV2 of the Interim Planning Guidance (2007). Furthermore, insufficient 
information has been provided for the Council to be able to determine 
whether the proposed duct riser would protect or enhance the character and 
appearance of the Myrdle Street Conservation Area, as required by Policy 
SP10(2) of the adopted Core Strategy (2010), saved Policy DEV27 of the 
Unitary Development Plan (1998), Policy CON2 of the Interim Planning 
Guidance (2007), Policy 4B.12 of the London Plan (2008) and Planning Policy 
Statement 5: Planning for the Historic Environment (2010). 

 
3. Insufficient information has been provided to adequately demonstrate that the 

proposed kitchen extract system would protect neighbouring residential 
amenity with regard to noise disturbance. As such, the proposal is contrary to 
the requirements of Policy SP03(2b) and Policy SP10(4) of the adopted Core 
Strategy (2010), saved Policies DEV2, DEV50 and S7 of the Unitary 
Development Plan (1998) and Policies DEV1 and DEV10 of the Interim 
Planning Guidance (2007). These policies require development proposals to 
protect the amenity of surrounding existing and future residents and building 
occupants, as well as protect the amenity of the surrounding public realm. 

 

Page 77



4. The applicant has failed to demonstrate that the proposal includes adequate 
provision for the storage and collection of waste refuse and recyclables, 
which is contrary to the requirements of saved Policy DEV55 of the Unitary 
Development Plan (1998) and Policy DEV15 of the Interim Planning 
Guidance (2007). These policies require planning applications to be 
considered in light of the adequacy and ease of access to the development 
for waste collection and the adequacy of storage space for waste given the 
frequency of waste collections. 

  
 Officer Comment: 

As noted above, several previous applications for change of use to Use Class A3 
have been dealt with by the Council. The majority of these have been refused 
(PA/13/00823, PA/12/00605, PA/10/02692, PA/10/02327, PA/10/01878). However, 
The most recent permission (PA/13/01607) has been approved. This is dealt with in 
further detail under Land Use in part 8 of this report.  

Page 78



 
5. POLICY FRAMEWORK 
  
5.1 For details of the status of relevant policies see the front sheet for “Planning 

Applications for Determination” agenda items. The following policies are relevant to 
the application: 

 
 

 
Government Planning Policy Guidance/Statements:  
National Planning Policy Framework 2012 
 
Spatial Development Strategy for Greater London (London Plan):  
4.7 - Retail and Town Centre Development 
7.15 - Reducing Noise and Enhancing Soundscapes 
 
Core Strategy Development Plan Document 2025 (adopted September 2010:  
SP01 - Refocusing on Town Centres 
SP03 - Creating Healthy and Liveable Neighbourhoods 
SP10 - Creating Distinct and Durable Places 
 
Managing Development Document (Adopted 2013): 
DM1 - Development within Town Centre Hierarchy 
DM2 - Local shops 
DM15 - Local job creation and investment 
DM24 - Place Sensitive Design 
DM25 - Amenity 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance: 
Myrdle Street Conservation Area Appraisal  
Whitechapel Vision SPD 2013  

 
6. CONSULTATION RESPONSE 
  
6.1 The views of the Directorate of Development & Renewal are expressed in the 

MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS section below. 
  
6.2 The following were consulted regarding the application:  

 
  
6.3 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

LBTH Transportation & Highways  
Transportation and Highways have no objection to this proposal. 
 
LBTH Waste Policy and Development  
Waste storage arrangement is not presented in the plan. Please provide the detail 
plan. 
 
Officer comment: The applicant has provided an amended drawing which shows a 
dedicated area for waste storage which is considered acceptable. 
 
LBTH Environmental Health Officer  
 
All the other data has been supplied and as long as the filtration system complies 
with BS4142 and the extractor system complies with your criteria, and odour/smoke 
emissions will be minimised and hence reduce likelihood of any odour complaints 
from the Pollution team I accept the planning application PA/13/02318. 

 

Page 79



7. LOCAL REPRESENTATION 
  
7.1 A total of 34 neighbouring properties within the area shown on the map appended to 

this report were notified about the application and invited to comment. A site notice 
was also displayed and the application was advertised in East End Life. The number 
of representations received from neighbours and local groups in response to 
notification and publicity of the application were as follows: 

  
 No of individual responses: 4 Objecting: 4 Supporting: 0 
 No of petitions received: 1 objecting containing 21 signatories 
  
7.2 The following issues were raised in representations objecting to the proposal that are 

material to the determination of the application, and they are addressed in the next 
section of this report: 
 

• The proposal will result in increased levels of air pollution, litter and infestation 

• The proposal will result in increased noise disturbance to neighbours 

• The proposal will result in an over-concentration of restaurants in the area 

• The proposal will adversely impact upon on-street parking provision  
 
 
8. MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
  
8.1 The main planning issues raised by the application that the committee must consider 

are: 
 
1. The loss of the retail unit  
2. The concentration of restaurants in the area  
3. The provision of new restaurant floorspace. 
4. The suitability of the rear flue  
5. Highways Impacts 

  
 
 
 
 
8.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.4 
 
 

Loss of Retail Unit. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
Consideration has been given to a number of policies which guide development 
involving the loss of A1 retail uses in certain locations.  Policy SP01 (2) of the Core 
Strategy (2010) seeks to ensure the scale and type of uses within town centres are 
consistent with the town centre hierarchy and SP02 (Part 5) promotes areas outside 
and at the edge of town centres as places which support and assist in the creation of 
sustainable communities.  Part (a) of Policy SP02(5) promotes mixed use 
development at the edge of town centres.   
 
The site is within the THAA, but outside the Whitechapel Centre Boundary. Policy 
DM2 of the Managing Development Document (Adopted 2013) seeks to ensure the 
existing level of local shop provision is maintained and complements the town centre 
network.  In summary, this Policy also goes on to explain how the loss of A1 will only 
be supported where there is a shop within 300m walking distance, the shop has been 
vacant for more than 12 months, and there is no viable prospect of retail use. 
 
It is noted that the retail unit is not currently vacant however the site is in close 
proximity to other retail shops and that shops within the Whitechapel District Centre 
are only 50 - 100m away.   

Page 80



 
8.5 
 
 
 
 
 
8.6 
 
 
 
8.7 
 
 
 
 
 
8.8 
 
 
 
8.9 
 
 
 
8.10 
 
 
 
8.11 
 
 
 
 
8.12 
 
 
 
 
8.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.14 
 
 
 
 

 
On balance given the mixed use nature of the area and the proximity of the unit to 
other shops and the Whitechapel District Centre it considered that the loss of the A1 
retail unit is acceptable, as there is a more than adequate provision of local shops in 
the area.  
 
Introduction of A3 use 
Policy SP01.2c of the Core Strategy (2010) seeks to ensure evening and night time 
economy uses, including restaurants, are not over-concentrated in areas where they 
will have a detrimental impact on local people.  
 
Policy DM1 (2) of the Managing Development Document (Adopted 2013) explains 
that within the Tower Hamlets Activity Areas (THAA), a mix of uses will be supported. 
Policy DM1 (4) states that ‘restaurants, public houses and hot food takeaways (class 
A3, A4 and A5) will be directed to the CAZ, THAA and town centres, provided that: a) 
They do not result in an over concentration of such use.  
 
It is noted that part b of this policy, which states that 'In all town centres there are at 
least two non-A3, A4 and A5 units between every new A3, A4 and A5 unit’ is not 
relevant here as the site is outside of the Town Centre Boundary.  
 
Consideration has also been given to Policy SP03 of the Core Strategy which 
supports healthy and active lifestyles, through seeking to reduce the over 
concentration of any use type that distracts from the ability to adopt healthy lifestyles 
 
Whitechapel Vision SPD promotes a mix of cafes, restaurants, bars and leisure 
activities to support the night-time economy but no specific guidance on land use or 
concentration. 
 
The key issue here is whether the proposal leads to an over-concentration of A3 
uses in the vicinity.  
 
Overconcentration in the area. 
 
There are other restaurants already trading within the vicinity of the site.  These 
include 131 New Road, 119 New Road, 97 New Road, 95 New Road,  93 New Road, 
87 New Road (Needoo), and 49-53 (Sahara Grille) New Road.  There is also a large 
restaurant on Fieldgate Street (Tayabbs).  
 
The Authority is concerned about the proliferation of restaurant uses along New 
Road, and the adverse impact that this proliferation will have on the amenity of the 
residential occupiers of the areas - in terms of potential for increased noise and 
disturbance from patrons coming and going.  There is also concern that a mixed 
balance of uses should be retained in the area.  Four letters of objection and one 
petition has been received from a number of residents close to the premises who 
have raised concerns about the existing levels of air pollution, litter, and noise 
disturbance and the increase to this that a new restaurant will create. 
 
Recent applications in the area 
 
As can be seen in the planning history section of the report, there has been a 
number of similar applications in the vicinity of the site over the last few years. The 
Authority’s concern about the proliferation of restaurant uses in this area had resulted 
in the majority of the applications being refused. However, more recently a planning 
application at 85 New Road was granted planning permission on 11th October 2013 

Page 81



 
 
 
8.15 
 
 
 
 

(ref. PA/ PA/13/01607). At the time of this application the officer carried out a survey 
of the nearby area to assess the concentration of uses within the area.  
 
This survey looked at the 36 commercial units in a walking distance of approximately 
100m along the road from 85 New Road (the application site) as shown on the plan 
below; 

 

 
 
The results of the officer’s survey were as follows; 

 
A1 (Retail including sandwich/coffee shops)  23 64% 

A2 (Financial and professional)  1 3% 

A3/A5 (Restaurants/Takeaways)  12 33%  
  
8.16 
 
 
 

This information was presented to Members at committee where it was considered 
that the results did not show that there was a clear overconcentration in the area 
especially in the absence of specific guidance as to what might constitute over-
concentration. 

Page 82



 
8.17 
 
 
 
 
8.18 
 
 
 
 
8.19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.21 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.22 

 
This is the first change of use application since the previous approval. Officers do not  
consider that there has been any substantial change in concentration of uses within 
the area and therefore in this instance the addition of an A3 unit in this location would 
be acceptable. 
 
Given the size of the proposed restaurant it is considered that the number of patrons 
is not going to have a significant impact on the noise and disturbance of people 
coming and going to the detriment of the local residents. As a restaurant rather than 
a takeaway it is considered unlikely to generate litter. There is also no reason why a 
well-run restaurant should lead to air pollution or infestation. 
 
On balance it is considered that the proposed restaurant would not result in an over-
concentration of this type of use and is in accordance with objectives of Core 
Strategy policy SP01, which seeks to promote a vibrant mix of uses in the designated 
Activity Areas.  Subject to conditions the restaurant uses is not considered to have 
adverse impacts on residential occupiers of the area in terms of increased noise & 
disturbance from patrons coming and going to the restaurants.  The proposal is 
therefore in accordance with the objectives of policies SP01(2c) of the adopted Core 
Strategy (2010) and policy DM1(4) of the adopted Managing Development Document 
(2013). 
 
Other issues associated with change of use to restaurant. 
 
The proposal includes a new kitchen and extraction system with a flue. This flue is 
discretely placed at the rear of the premises and will not be readily visible from the 
streetscene. Subject to conditions the proposal would not harm to the character and 
appearance of the Myrdle Street Conservation Area, in accordance with Policy SP10 
(2) of the Council’s adopted Core Strategy (2010), Policies DM24 and DM27 of the 
Managing Development Document (2013) and government guidance set out in 
Section 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012). These policies and 
government guidance seek to ensure that development is well designed and that it 
preserves or enhances the character and appearance of the Borough’s Conservation 
Areas and historic buildings. 
 
Transport and Highways 
 
The proposal would slightly increase delivery and other vehicle trips to and from the 
site. However, the proposal is located in an established commercial area; therefore 
this proposal will not have any major impact on the highways. The applicant could 
use the loading bay located in front of the proposed development for servicing and 
LBTH Highways and Transport have raised no objection. Objections have been 
raised by local residents in regards to increased parking pressure, given the relatively 
small size of the restaurant is not considered that the change of use would result in 
increased parking pressure on in the local vicinity. 
 
 
Waste 
 
The proposal did not originally include any provision of waste which LBTH Waste 
Policy raised as an objection. Revised details were subsequently submitted by the 
applicant that show an area of storage for waste on the grounds floor level which is 
considered acceptable. It is therefore considered that the proposal includes adequate 
facilities for the storage of waste and recyclables, in accordance with Policy DM14 of 
the Managing Development Document (2013), and Policy 5.17 of the London Plan 

Page 83



(2011). These policies seek to ensure that developments include adequate 
provisions for the storage of waste and recyclables within the development given the 
frequency of collections. 
 

  
9.0 Other Planning Issues 
  
9.1 The Equality Act 2010 provides protection from discrimination in respect of certain 

protected characteristics, namely: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy 
and maternity, race, religion or beliefs and sex and sexual orientation. It places the 
Council under a legal duty to have due regard to the advancement of equality in the 
exercise of its powers including planning powers. Officers have taken this into 
account in the assessment of the application and the Committee must be mindful of 
this duty inter alia when determining all planning applications. In particular the 
Committee must pay due regard to the need to:  
 

1. eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under the Act;  

2. advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and  

3. foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

 
It is not considered that this application raises any equalities issues. 
 

10.0 Conclusions 
  
10.1 All other relevant policies and considerations have been taken into account. Planning 

permission should be GRANTED for the reasons set out in the SUMMARY OF 
MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS and the details of the decision are set 
out in the RECOMMENDATION at the beginning of this report. 

 

Page 84



 

11.0 Site Map 
  

 

 
Planning Application Site Map  
Planning Application Reference:  PA/13/02318 
 

 
This Site Map displays the Planning Application Site Boundary and the neighbouring Occupiers / Owners who were 
consulted as part of the Planning Application process.  © Crown copyright and database rights 2013 Ordnance Survey, 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets 100019288 

 
 

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 86


	Agenda
	1 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS
	2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING(S)
	4 PROCEDURE FOR HEARING OBJECTIONS AND MEETING GUIDANCE
	6 PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR DECISION
	6.1 Units 24 - 32 (even) Mastmaker Road, London, E14 9UB (PA/13/02773)
	CommitteeReportPA1302773
	MAP
	May Update
	September Update

	6.2 93 New Road, London, E1 1HH (PA/13/02318)

